~ LN

O 0 9 O W

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
SARA J. DRAKE
Senior Assistant Attorney General
WILLIAM L. WILLIAMS, JR.
Deputy Attorney General
T. MICHELLE LAIRD
Deputy Attorney General
NEIL D. HousTON
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 168058
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 322-5476
Fax: (916) 327-2319
E-mail: Neil. Houston@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Defendant

Per Government Code § 6103, State of
California is exempt from filing fee

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
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CENTRAL BRANCH

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE,
Plaintiff,
V.
THE CALIFORNIA GAMBLING
CONTROL COMMISSION; and DOES 1
THROUGH 50, Inclusive, '

Defendants.

Case No. 37-2008-00075326-CU-CO-CTL

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE
AND SUPPORTING DECLARATION
OF DEFENDANT CALIFORNIA

| GAMBLING CONTROL COMMISSION

IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR

- SUMMARY JUDGMENT
Date: April 26, 2013
Time: 2:00 p.m.
Dept: 62 '
Judge: The Honorable Ronald L. Styn
Trial Date: June 4, 2013

Action Filed: January 8, 2008

Defendant California Gambling Control Commission respectfully requests that the Court

take judicial notice pursuant to Evidence Code sections 452 and 453 of each of the following

documents in support of _its motion for summary judgment:
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A.  The Cover Sheet, Table of Contents, and pages 1 through 7 of the Tribal-State
Compact between the State of California and the Dry Creek Rancheria of Pomo Indians, executed
on September 10, 1999 (available'at http://wWw.cgcc.ca. gov/?pagelD=compacts).

B.  Letter dated December 22, 2010, from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary —
Indian Affairs, United States Department of the Interior, to Ms. Sylvia [sic] Burley.

C. Complaint filed on January 24, 2011, in the United States District Court for the
District of Columbia, The California Valley Miwok Tribe, et al., v. Ken Salazar, et al., No. 1:11-
cv-00160 RWR.

D. Letter dated April 1,2011, from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary — Indian
Affairs, United Stetes Department of the Interior, to Mr. Yakima Dixie.

E. Letter ddted August 31, 2011, from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary — Indian
Affairs, United States Department of the Interior, to Mr. Yakima Dixie and Ms. Silvia Burley.

F. The Cox;er Sheet, Table of Contents, and pages 1 through 15 of the Tribal-State
Compact between the State of California and the Pinoleville Pomo Nation, executed on October
2,2011 (aVailable at http://www.cgcc.ca.gov/?pagelD=compacts).

G.  U.S. District Court, District of Columbia (Washington, DC), CIVIL DOCKET FOR
CASE #: 1:11-cv-00160-RWR (available at https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-
bin/DktRpt.pl??: 13875599490286-L_1_0-1). .

H. Plaintiff_s’ First Amended Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief, The
California Valley Miwok Tribe, et al. . Salazar, ‘et al., (filed 10/17/11) (D.D.C.) Case No. 1:11-
cv-00160-RWR. | |

L Cover Sheet, Table of Contents, and pages 1 to 26, Tribal-State 'Compact Between the
State of California and the Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria (executed 3/27/ 12; ratjﬁed
5/17/12; published in the Federal Register 7/12/12) (available at
http://www.cgcc.ca.gov/?pagelD=compacts).

Each of the foregoing documents is attached to this Reciuest.

The Ceurt may take judicial notice, under Evidence Cede section 452, subdivisions (c), and

(d), of the official acts of the legislative and executive departments of the United States and of
2
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any state, and of the records of any court of record of the United States. Section 453 of the
Evidence Code provides that judicial notice of the matters set forth in section 452 is mandatory if
properly requested by a party. The requesting party must give sufficient notice of the request to

enable the adverse party to prepare to meet it, and furnish the court with sufficient information to

enable the Court to take judicial notice of the matter. (Evid. Code, § 453, subd. (2) & (b).)

A The documents in Exhibits A, B, D, E, F, and H are official records of the United States
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs. “The records and files of an administrative
board are properly the subject of judicial notice.‘” (Hogenv. Valley Hbspiz‘al (1983) 147
Cal.App.3d 119, 125; see also Western States Petroleum Ass'n v. Dept. of Health Services (2002)
99 Cal.App.4th 999, 1002 [judicial_ notice taken of federal Environmental Protection Agency's
materials pursilant to Evidence Code section 452, subdivision (c)].) Exhibits A, F and H also are
official records of the legislative and executive departments of the State of California in that
Exhibits A, F and H were executed by the Governor of California and ratified by the Legislature.

The document in Exhibits C, G, and H are records of the federal courts and are éubject to
judicial notice pursﬁant to Evidence Code section 452, subdivision (d). (Mills v. U.S. Bank _
(2008) 166 Cal.App.4th 871, 877 '[judi’cial notice taken of certain pleadings frofn federal action].)

Each of the items requested to be not'ic‘ed is relevant to the motion for sumrhary judgment,
and the relevance of each is set forth in the memorandum accompanying and other pleadings filed

in connection with the motion for summary judgment.
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Dated: March 6, 2013 ~ Respectfully Submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
SARA J. DRAKE

Senior Assistant Attorney General
WILLIAM L. WILLIAMS, JR.
Deputy Attorney General

T. MICHELLE LAIRD

Deputy Attorney General

NEIL D. HOUSTON
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Defendant

SUPPORTING DECLARATION OF NEIL D. HOUSTON
| I, NEIL D. HOUSTON declare: _
1. I am a Deputy Attorney General with the California Department of Justice, Office of
the Attorney General, and am one of the attorneys of record for the Califorﬁia Gambling Control

Commission (Commission) in this matter. I am an attorney at law duly licensed to practice before

all within the State of California. I'have personal knowledge of the facts set forth below and if

called as a witness, I could and would competently testify to them.
2.  This declaratien is made in support of the Commission’s reciuest for judicial notice.
3. Exhibit A attached hereto is-a true and correct copy of the Cover Sheet, Table of
Conterits and pages 1 thrOUgh 7 of the Tribal-State Compact between the State of California and

the Dry Creek Rancheria of Pomo Indians, executed on September 10, 1999 (available at

- http://www.cgece.ca. gov/OpageID—compacts) It was received by the Office of the Attorney

General of California in the regular course of business and is being maintained in the file for this
matter over which I have responsibility. |

4, - Exhibit B attached hereto is a ;true and correct copy of a letter dated December 22,
2010, from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs, United States Department of

the Interior, to Ms. Sylvia [sic] Burley. It was received by the Office of the Attorney General of
. . _
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California in the regular course of business and is being maintained in the file for this matter over
which I have responéibility.

5. Exhibit C attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Coniplaint filed on J anuary
24,2011, in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia, California Valley
Miwok Tribe, et al., v. Ken Salazar, et al., No. 1:11-cv-00160 RWR. Tt was regeivéd by the
Office of the Attorney General of California in the regular course of business and is being
maintained in the file for this matter over which I have responsibility.

| 6.  Exhibit D attached hereto is a true and corréct copy of a letter dated April 1, 2011,
from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistantb Sectetary — Indian Affairs, United States Department of the
Interior, to Mr. Yakima Dixie. It was received by the Office of the Attorney General of
California in the regular course of business and is being maintained in thé file for this matter over
which I have; responsibility. 7

7.  Exhibit E attached hereto is a true and correct copy of a letter dated August 31, 2011,
from Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs, United States Department of the -
Interior, to Mr. Yakima Dixie and Ms. Silvia Burley. It was received by the Ofﬁce of the
Attqr'néy General of California in the regular course of business and is being maintained in the
file for this matter over which I have responsibility.

8.  Exhibit F attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Cover Sheet, Table of
Contents, and pages l.t‘hrough 15 of the Tribal-State Compact between the State of California and
the Pinoleville Pomo Nation, executed on Octéber 2,2011 (available at -
hitp://www.cgce.ca.gov/?pagelD=compacts). It was received by the Office of the Attorney
General of California in the regular course of business and is being maintained in the file for this
matter over which I have resiaonsibility.

9.  Exhibit G attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Civil Docket for The
California Valley Miwok Tribe, et al. v. Salazar, et al., Case No. 1;1 1-cv-00160-RWR, Urﬁted
States Dis_trict Court, District of Columbia. It is available at available at
https://ecf.dcd.uscourts; gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 and was downloaded

and printed out pursuant to my instructions. Exhibit G was received by the Office of the Attorney
‘ 5
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General of California in the régular course of business and is being maintained in the case file for
this matter over which I have responsibility.

10. ExhibitH 4attached hereto is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s First Amended
Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief, which was filed in California ValZey Miwok
Tribe, et al. v. Salazar, et al., (filed 10/17/11) (D.D.C.) Case No.‘ 1:11-¢v-00160-RWR, Exhibit
H was received by the Office of the Attorney General of California in the regular course of
buéiness and has been maintained in the case file for this matter over which I have responsibility.

11.  Exhibit I attached hereto ié a true and cbrrect copy of the Cover Sheet, Table of .
Contents, and pages 1 through 26 of the Tribal-State Compact between the State of California and
the Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria, executed on March 27, 2012 and ratified May 17,
2012 (available at http://www.cgcc.ca. gov/?pageID=compactS). It was received by the Office of
the Attorney General of California in the regﬁlar course of business-and is being maintained in the
file for this matter over which I have responsibility.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed this 6th day of March 2013 at Sacramento, California.

NEIL D. HOUSTON
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. TRIBAL-STATE GAMING COMPACT
Between the DRY CREEK RANCHERIA, a federally recognized Ind1an Tribe,
and the
'STATE OF CALIFORNIA

, This Tribal-State Gaming Compact is -entered into on a
government-to-government basis. by and between the Dry Creek Rancheria, a
federally-recognized sovereign Indian tribe (hereafter "Tribe"), and the' State of
California, a sovereign State of the United States (hereafter "State"), pursuant to the
Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988 (P.L. 100-497, codified at 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1166
et seq. and 25 U.S.C. Sec. 2701 et seq.) (hereafter "IGRA"), and any successor statute
or amendments

PREAMBLE

A. In 1988, Congress enacted IGRA as the federal statute governing Indian
gaming in the United States. The purposes of IGRA are to provide a statutory basis
for the operation of gaming by Indian tribes as a means of promoting tribal economic
. development, self-sufficiency, and strong tribal governments; to provide a statutory

basis for regulation of Indian gaming adequate to shield it from organized crime and
~ other corrupting influences; to-ensure that the Indian tribe is the primary beneficiary
of the gaming operation; to ensure that gaming is conducted fairly and honestly by
both the operator and players; and to declare that the establishment of an independent
federal regulatory authority for gaming on Indian lands, federal standards for gaming
on Indian lands, and a National Indian Gaming Commission are necessary to meet
congressional concerns.

B.  The system of regulatlon of Indlan gaming fashioned by Congress in
IGRA rests on an allocation of regulatory jurisdiction among the three sovereigns -
involved: the federal government, the state in which a tribe has land, and the tribe
itself. IGRA makes Class III gaming activities lawful on the lands of federally-
recognized Indian tribes only if such activities are: (1) authorized by a tribal
~ordinance, (2) located-in a state that permits such gaming for any purpose by any
person, organization or entity, and (3) conducted in conformity with a gaming compact
entered into between the Indian tribe and the state and approved by the Secretary of
the Interlor :
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C.  The Tribe does not currently operate a gaming facility that offers Class
I1I gaming activities. However, on or after the effective date of this Compact, the
Tribe intends to develop and operate a gaming facility offering Class III gaming
activities on its reservation land, which is located in Sonoma County of California.

D. The State enters into this Compact out of respect for the sovereignty of
the Tribe; in recognition of the historical fact that Indian gaming has become the
‘'single largest revenue-producing activity for Indian tribes in the United States; out of
a desire to terminate pending “bad faith” litigation between the Tribe and the State; to
initiate a new era of tribal-state cooperation in areas of mutual concern; out of a
respect for the sentiment of the voters of California who, in approving Proposition 5,
expressed their belief that the forms of gaming authorized herein should be allowed,;
and in anticipation of voter approval of SCA 11 as passed by the California legislature.

E.  The exclusive rights that Indian tribes in California, including the Tribe,
will enjoy under this Compact create a unique opportunity for the Tribe to operate its
Gamiing Facility in an economic environment free of competition from the Class III
gaming referred to in Section 4.0 of this Compact on non-Indian lands in California.
The parties are mindful that this unique environment is of great economic value to the
Tribe and the fact that income from Gaming Devices represents a substantial portion
of the tribes’ gaming revenues. In consideration for the exclusive rights enjoyed by
the tribes, and in further consideration for the State’s willingness to enter into this

- Compact, the tribes have agreed to provide to the State, on a sovereign-to-sovereign

basis, a portion of its revenue from Gaming Devices.

F.  The State has a legitimate interest in promoting the purposes of IGRA for
all federally-recognized Indian tribes in California, whether gaming or non-gaming.
The State contends that it has an equally legitimate sovereign interest in regulating the
growth of Class III gaming activities in California. The Tribe and the State share a
joint sovereign interest in ensuring that tribal gaming activities are free from criminal
and other undesirable elements.

Section 1.0, PURPOSES AND OBIECTIVES

The terms of this "Gaming Compact are des1gned and intended to:




(a) Evidence the goodwill and cooperation of the Tribe and State in fostering
-a mutually respectful government-to-government relationship that will serve the
mutual interests of the parties. :

(b) Develop and implement a means of regulatmg Class III gaming, and only

Class [II gaming, on the Tribe's Indian lands to ensure its fair and honest operation in
accordance with IGRA, and through that regulated Class III gaming, enable the Tribe
to develop self-sufficiency, promote tribal economic development, and generate jobs
and revenues to support the Tribe's government and governmental services and
programs. :
(c) Promote ethical practices in conjunction with that gaming, through the
4hcensmg and control of persons and entities employed in, or providing goods and
services to, the Tribe's Gaming Operation and protecting against the presence or
participation of persons whose criminal backgrounds, reputations, character, or
associations make them unsuitable for participation in gaming, thereby maintaining
a high level of integrity in tribal government gaming.

Sec. 2.0. DEFINITIONS. :

Sec. 2.1. "Applicant” means an individual or entity that apphes for a Trlbal'
license or State certification.

Sec. 2.2. “Association” means an-association of California tribal and state
gaming regulators, the membership of which comprises up to two representatives from
each tribal gaming agency of those tribes with whom the State has a gaming compact
under IGRA, and up to two delegates each from the state Division of Gambling
- Control and the state Gambling Control Commission.

Sec. 2.3. "Class III gaming" means the forms of Class HI gaming defined as
such in 25 U.S.C. Sec. 2703(8) and by regulations of the National Indian Gaming
Commission.

Sec. 2.4. "Gaming Activities" means the Class g gaming activities authorized
under this Gaming Compact.

‘Sec. 2.5. "Gaming Compact” or “Compact” means this compact.

Sec. 2.6. "Gaming Device" means a slot machine, including an electronic,
electromechanical, electrical, or video device that, for consideration, permits:
individual play with or against that device or the participation in any electronic,
electromechanical, electrical, or video system to which that device is corinected; the
playing of games thereon or therewith, including, but not limited to, the playing of
facsimiles of games of chance or skill; the possible delivery of, or entitlement by the
player to, a prize or something of value as a result of the application of an element of




"

chance; and a method for viewing the outcome, prize won, and other information
regarding the playmg of games thereon or therewith.

Sec. 2.7. "Gaming Employee" means any person who (a) operates, maintains,
repairs, assists in any Class III gaming activity, or is in any way responsible for
supervising such gaming activities or persons who conduct, operate, account for, or
supervise any such gaming activity, (b) is in a category under federal or tribal gaming
law requiring licensing, (c) is an employee of the Tribal Gaming Agency with access
to confidential information, or (d) is a person whose employment duties require or
authorize access to areas of the Gaming Facility that are not open to the public.

Sec. 2.8. "Gaming Facility" or “Facility” means any building in which Class III
gaming activities or gaming operations occur, or in which the business records,

_receipts, or other funds of the gaming operation are maintained (but excluding offsite

facilities primarily dedicated to storage of those records, and financial institutions),
and all rooms, buildings, and areas, including parking lots and walkways, a principal
purpose of which is to serve the activities of the Gaming Operation, provided that
nothing herem prevents the conduct of Class II gammg (as defined under IGRA)
therein.

Sec. 2.9. "Gaming Operation" means the business enterprise that offers and -
operates Class III Gaming Activities, whether exclusively or otherwise.

Sec. 2.10. "Gaming Ordinance" means a tribal ordinance or resolution duly

“authorizing the conduct of Class [T Gaming Activities on the Tribe's Indian lands and

approved under IGRA.
Sec. 2.11. "Gaming Resources" means any goods or services provided or used
in connection with Class III Gaming Activities, whether exclusively or otherwise,

including, but not limited to, equipment, furniture, gambling devices and ancillary

equipment, implements of gaming activities such as playing cards and dice, furniture
designed primarily for Class III gaming activities, maintenance or security equipment
and services, and Class III gaming consulting services. "Gaming Resources" does not -
include professional accounting and legal services.

Sec. 2.12. "Gaming Resource Supplier" means any person or entlty who,
directly or indirectly, manufactures, distributes, supplies, vends, leases, or otherwise
purveys Gaming Resources to the Gaming Operation or Gaming Facility, provided
that the Tribal Gaming Agency may exclude a purveyor of equipment or furniture that
is not specifically designed for, and is distributed generally for use other than in
connection with, Gaming Activities, if the purveyor is not otherwise a Gaming
Resource Supplier as described by of Section 6.4.5, the compensation received by the




purveyor is not grossly disproportionate to the value of the goods or services provided,
" and the purveyor is not otherwise a person who exercises a significant influence over
the Gambling Operation.

Sec. 2.13. "IGRA" means the Indian Gamlng Regulatory Act of 1988 (P L.
100-497, 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1166 et seq. and 25 U.S.C. Sec. 2701 et seq.) any
amendments thereto, and all regulations promulgated thereunder.

Sec. 2.14. "Management Contractor" means any Gaming Resource Supplier
with whom the Tribe has contracted for the management of any Gaming Activity or
Gaming Facility, including, but not limited to, any person who would be regarded as
a management contractor under IGRA.

Sec. 2.15. “Net Win” means “net win” as defined by American Institute of
" Certified Public Accountants.

Sec. 2.16. “NIGC” means the National Indian Gaming Commission.
-Sec. 2.17. "State" means the State of California or an authorized official or
agency thereof.
Sec. 2.18. "State Gaming Agency means the entities authorized to investigate,
approve, and regulate gaming licenses pursuant to the Gambling Control Act (Chapter
5 (commencmg with Section 19800) of Division 8 of the Business and Professions
Code). . :

- Sec. 2.19. "Tribal Chairperson" means the person duly elected or selected under -
the Tribe's organic documents, customs, or traditions to serve as the primary
spokesperson for the Tribe. S

Sec. 2.20. "Tribal Gaming Agency" means the person, agency, board,
committee, commission, or council designated under tribal law, including, but not
limited to, an intertribal gaming regulatory agency approved to fulfill those functions
by the National Indian Gaming Commission, as primarily responsible for carrying out
the Tribe's regulatory responsibilities under IGRA and the Tribal Gaming Ordinance.
No person employed in, or in connection: with, the management, supervision, or
conduct of any gammg activity may be a member or employee of the Tribal Gaming:
Agency. ,

' Sec. 2.21. "Tribe" means the Dry Creek Rancheria, a federally-recogmzed
Indian tribe, or an authorized official or agency thereof. .

Sec. 3.0 CLASS III GAMING AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED. The Tribe
is hereby authorized and permitted to engage in only the Class III Gaming Activities
expressly referred to in Section 4.0 and shall not engage in Class III gaming that is not
expressly authorized i in that Section.



Sec. 4.0. SCOPE OF CLASS III GAMING.

Sec. 4.1. Authorized and Permitted Class IIl gaming. The Tribe is hereby
authorized and permitted to operate the following Gaming Activities under the terms
and conditions set forth in this Gaming Compact:

{a) The operation of Gaming Devices.

(b) Any banking or percentage card game.

(c) The operation of any devices or games that are authorized under state law
to the California State Lottery, provided that the Tribe will not offer such games
through use of the Internet unless others in the state are permitted to do so under state
and federal law. . ~ |

(e) Nothing herein shall be construed to preclude negotiation of a separate
compact governing the conduct of off-track wagering at the Tribe’s Gaming Facility.

Sec. 4.2. Authorized Gaming Facilities. The Tribe may establish and operate
not more than two Gaming Facilities, and only on those Indian lands.on which gaming
may lawfully be conducted under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act. The Tribe may
combine and operate in each Gaming Facility any forms and kinds of gaming
permitted under law, except to the extent 11m1ted under IGRA, this Compact, or the
Tribe's Gaming Ordinance.

Sec. 4.3,  Sec. 4.3. Authorized number of Gaming Devices

. Sec.4.3.1 The Tribe may operate no more Gaming Dev1ces than the larger of

‘the following:
) (a) A number of terminals equal to the number of Gaming Devices operated by -
the Tribe on September 1, 1999; or '

(b) Three hundred fifty (350) Gaming Devices.

Sec. 4.3.2. Revenue Sharing with Non-Gaming Tribes. '

(a) For the purposes of this Section 4.3.2 and Section 5.0, the following
definitions apply:

(i) A “Compact Tribe” is a tnbe having a compact with the State that authorizes
the Gaming Activities authorized by this Compact. Federally-recognized tribes that

~ are operating fewer than 350 Gaming Devices are “Non-Compact Tribes.” Non-
Compact Tribes shall be deemed third party beneficiaries of this and other compacts
identical in all material respects. A Compact Tribe that becomes a Non-Compact
Tribe may not thereafter return to the status of a Compact Tribe for a period of two
years becoming a Non-Compact Tribe.




(ii) The Revenue Sharing Trust Fund is a fund created by the Legislature and
administered by the California Gambling Control Commission, as Trustee, for the
receipt, deposit, and distribution of monies paid pursuant to this Section 4.3.2.

(iii) The Special Distribution Fund is a fund created by the Legislature for the
receipt, deposit, and distribution of monies paid pursuant to Section 5.0.

Sec. 4.3.2.1. Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.

_ (a) The Tribe agrees with all other Compact Tribes that are parties to compacts
having this Section 4.3.2, that each Non-Compact Tribe in the State shall receive the
sum of $1.1 million per year. In the event there are insufficiént monies in the Revenue
- Sharing Trust Fund to pay $1.1 million per year to each Non-Compact Tribe, any

available monies in that Fund shall be distributed to Non-Compact Tribes in equal
shares. Monies in excess of the amount necessary to $1.1 million to each Non-
Compact Tribe shall remain in the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund available for
disbursement in future years.

(b) Payments made to Non-Compact Tribes shall be made quarterly and in
equal shares out of the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund. The Commission shall serve as
the trustee of the fund. The Commission shall have no discretion with respect to the
use or disbursement of the trust funds. Its sole authority shall be to serve as a
depository of the trust funds and to disburse them on a quarterly basis to Non-Compact
Tribes. In no event shall the State’s General Fund be obllgated to make up any
shortfall or pay any unpaid claims.

Sec. 4.3.2.2.. Allocation of Licenses.

(a) The Tribe, along with all other Compact Tribes, may acquire licenses to use

' Gaming Devices in excess of the number they are authorized to use under Sec. 4.3.1,
but in no event may the Tribe operate more than 2, OOO Gaming Devices, on the
following terms, conditions, and priorities:

(1). The maximum number of machines that all Compact Tribes in the
aggregate may license pursuant to this Section shall be a sum equal to 350 multiplied
by the number of Non-Compact tribes as of September 1, 1999, plus the difference |
between 350 and the lesser number authorized under Section 4.3.1. '

(2) The Tribe may acquire and maintain'a license to operate a Gaming Device

by paying into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, on a quarcerly basis, in the following
amounts:




EXHIBIT B



’ nature of & tribal em'ol].ment dlspute Decision, 51 IBIA

‘government and membership.

. Background

. 2007 contract'with the BIA under the Indlan Self-Determination
. the BIA's offer of assistance constitutes an Impermissible Intry

" never termlnated and thus lsnota ”restored”‘tnbe Dec:slon 51 B
1

Washington, DC 3

'Ms. Sylvia Burley :
California Valley Miwok Tribe
10601 Escondido Place .
Stockton, California 95212 -

Dear Ms. Burley:

United States Departtnent of the Interior - v
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY ' Co

pECZ2W .. .- |

0240

. This letter is to inform you of the Department of the Intérior’s response to the decmon of the

Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Pacific Regzonall :

Director, Bureau, of Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (Januayy 28, 2010) (Decision).

l

The Decision stemmed from Sylvia Builey’s appeal of the Bureau of Indian Affairs Pacific

Regional Director’s April 2, 2007 decision to affirm the Ceniral Cahforma Agency .
Superintendent in his efforts to “assist™ the Tribe iri orggnizing a tribal government, In the .
Decision, the IBIA dismissed each-of Ms. Burley’s threg

The IBIA did, however, refer Ms, Burley’s second claim

This letter is intended to address the limited issues ralseei by Ms. Burley s second complamt as :

referred to my office by the IBIA: the BIA’s involvemer,

This dlfﬁcult issue is rooted in the umque hlstory of the California Va]ley leok Tiibe, A |
relatively small numbér of tribal members had been'living on less than 1 acre of" fand in -

Calaveras County, California known as the Sheep Ranch

Department was. preparing to terminate the Tribe pursuant to the California Rancheria:’
Termination Act, as part of that.datk chapter of Federal Indian policy known as the “Termination
Era.” As part of this.effort, the Department had inténded to. distribute the assets of the Sheep
.Ranch Rancheria to Ms. Mabel Dixie, as the only eligible person to recejve the assets.” ,

_The Department never completed the process of termmaung the Tnbe and the Tnbe never lost:

its status as a sovereign federally-reco gmzed tr1be. )

! Ms, Burley’s complalnts were: 1,) The BIA Pa.élﬁc Reg]onal Directc
Director’s declsion constituted an. uniawful reassumption of the ¢
matters that are reserved exclusively to the'Tribe; and, 3.) the Regl

1

1
!
complaints for lack of y.mséhci:loxl,1 |
to my office, because it Was inthe |
at 122, ' :

it in the Tribe’s aﬂ‘alrs related to

Rancherla since 1916..In 1966, the s

|
l

i

[

'

and .Education Asslstance Act, or the Reglonal
ontragt; 2.) the Tribe Is already.organized, and
slon Into tribal gevernment and membershlp.
onal Director efred in statmg that the Tribe vJas
A at 104,

. g e

t's April 2, 2007 decxslon violated the Trlbe s'F-Y ' ,

kY



In 1998, Yakima Dixie, a tribal member acting as the le
Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace as
Department recognized those five individuals, along wi
members of the Tribe: Decision, 51 IBIA at 108.

On September 24, 1998, the Superintendent of the Burg

Agericy advised 'Yakima Dixie, then serving as Tribal
Dixie, Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, an
participate in an effort to reorganize under the Indian R

- Miwok Tribe v. United States, 424 F. Supp. 2d. 197, 19§

Superintendent also recommended that the Tribe establi
for the organization process, and provided the Tribe wif
implement such a form of government, On November

. Tribe established the General Council. Jd.

Several months afterwards, in April 1999, Yakima Dixi
May 8, 1999, the Tribe held a general election, in which

'Sylvia Burley as its new chairperson. 'The BIA later req
-the California Valley Miwok Tribe. Id.

Shortly thereafter, the Tribe developed a draft constituti
Secretarial review and approval in May 1999.? During 1
dispute developed between Ms, Burley and Mr, Dixie.

On March 6,-2000, the Tribe ratified-its Constitution an
review and hold a secretarial election pursuant to the In
the interim, on March 7, 2000, the Superinténdent issue
BIA “believed the Tribe’s General Council to consist of

‘Mr, Dixie, Ms, Burley, and Ms. Reznor,” and stated that

Dixie and Ms. Burley was an internal tribal matter.” /d.

In Fébruary 2004, Ms. Burley submitted a document {0 1

" Tribe’s constitution, The BIA declined to approve the ¢

Ms:. Butley had not involved the entire tribal community
from Dale Risling, Sr. to Sylvia Burley (March 26, 2004
Indians in the local area who may have historical ties to

hder of the Tribe, adopted Sylvia Busléy,
members of the Tribe. At that time, tHe
th Yakima-Dixie’s brother Melvin, as *

au of Indian Affairs Central Californias
hairman, that Yakima Dixie, Melvin
1d Tristan Wallace were able to
sorganization Act. California Valley
(D.D.C.2006). In that same letter, the
sh a general council form of government
h a draft version'of a resolutionto * !
b, 1998, b%y Resolution # GC-98-01, the-

| . t.
> resigned as Tribal Chairman, On
| 'Yakima Dixie participated, and elected
ognized Sylvia Burley as'Chairperson of

ori, and submitted it to the BIA for |
his effort, it is apparent that a leaiezzsh%ip

later requested that the BIA conducta -+
ian Reorganization Act. Id, at 199, In
i 2 letter to Sylvia Burley stating that the
the adult members of the tribe, i.e.,
the leadership dispute between Mr. !

he BIA purporting to serve as the I
onstitition because it believed that
F in its development and adoption, Letter
). The BIA noted that thete weze othet
the Tribe: In that same letter, the BIA!

indicated that it did not view the Tribe as an “’organizeq’ Indian Tribe,” and that it would only!

recognize Ms, Burley as a “person of authorify” within

" Letter from Dale Risling, Sr. t0 Sylvia Burley (March 2
. Secretary — Indian Affairs affirmed this position in a le

[TThe BIA made clear [in its decision of
Federal government did not recognize M
~ Chairman, Rather, the BIA would recog

2 The Tribe withdrew Its original request for Secretarfal review of |

e Tribe, rather than: the Chairperson. ;
, 2004)., The Office of the Assistant |
r stating: _ :

arch 26, 2004] that the
. Burley as the tribal
ize her has a ‘person of

constitution In July 1899, u

3 pursuant to the Tribe’s Resolution # GC-98-01, the General Coundil shall consist of all adult members of the Trlt;)e.

2




authority within California Valley Miwok Tribe.’ Until such ‘time
as the Tribe has organized, the Federal gpvernment can récognize
" no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman.

Letter from Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs[Michael D. Olsen to Yakima Dixie
(February 11, 2005). At that point, the BIA became fodused on an effort to organize the Tribe;
under the Indian Reorganization Act, and to include a njimber of people who were not officially
tribal members in that effort.* : S :

In 2005, the BIA suspended a contract with the Tribe, and later asserted that there was no longer

. a governmert-to-government relationship between the Wnited States and the Tribe. 424 F. Sugp.. |
2d. at 201, . ' :

Sylvia Burley, on behalf of the Tribe, filed a complaint bgainst the United States in the United
States District Court for the District of Columbia seeking declaratory relief affirming that it had
the authority to organize under its own procedures purspant to 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), and that its
proffered constitution was a valid governing document.| /4. . The United States defended against

the claim by arguing that its interpretation of the IndianReqrganization Act was not arbitrary and

capricious, and that it had a duty to protect the interests pfall tribal members duringthe |
organization process — which included those individual Miwok Indians whe were eligible for ;| .
enrollment in the tribe. See Jd. at 202. The District Coyit ruled that the Tribe failed 1o state 2 |
claim for which relief could be granted, which was affirned by the United States Court of = |

- Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, Id, at 202} 515 F.3d. 1262,
. On November 6 5 20086, the Superintendent of the BIA Cenfrai: California Agency issued i'ettersé to

Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie, stating, “[iJtis evident, ‘however, that the ongoing leadership.

' dispute is at-an impasse and the likelihood of this impaspe changing soon seems to be remots. -
“Therefore, we renew our offer to assist the Tribe in the grganizational process.” Letter from : .
Troy Burdick to Sylvia Burley and- Yakima Dixie (Novs mber 6, 2006). The Superintendent then

stated “[t]he Agency, therefore, will publish notice of a general council meeting of the Tribe td
be sponsored by the BIA in the newspapers within the Miwok region, This will init;ate the °
reorganization process,” Id. . ) . .

]

Sylvia Burley appealed this decision to the BIA Pacific Regional Director, who affirmed the .
Superintendent’s decision on April 2, 2007, That same month, the BIA Pacific Regional Office -
publishéd notice of the reorganizational meeting in a neyspaper in the region. Sylvia Burley
appealed the Régiona] Director’s decision to the IBIA, which subsequently dismissed her cla‘_i,n;;s,
while referring the second claim to my office. . - . i

Discussion o . ) Co ; . I

* The BIA, Yakima Dixle, and Sylvia Burley all agreed that there|was a number of addltlonal people who W:ere
" potentially eligible for membership In the Tribe, See, Callfornia Vidlley Miwok Tribe v, United States, 515 F.3d 1267

- 1268 {D.C. Clr. 2008) (noting that the Tribe has admitted it has a potentia/ membershlp of 250) (emphasls
added), : ' : |
. !

3 !




I must decide whether to move forward with the BIA's previous efforts to organize the Tribe’ § _
government, or to recognize the Tribe’s general council| form of government - consisting of th,e

+ adult members of the tribe —as sufﬁc1ent to fulfill our nation-to-nation relationship,

The Department of the Intetior is reluctant t6 mvolve itself in these inteinal tribal matters. To .
the extent that Department must touch upon these fundgmental internal tribal matters, its actiohs
must be limited to upholdmg its trust responsibility and|effectuating the nation-to-nation '

relationship.
A, Tribal Citizenship

In this instance, the facts clearly establish that the Tribejis a federally recognized tribe which
shares a nation-to-nation relationship with the United States. Moxreover, the facts also’establish
that Mr, Dixie adopted Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace asi
members of the Sheep Ranch Ranchena in 1998. . ,

The California Valley Miwok Tnbe, like all other feder lly recogmzed tribes, is a distinct pol1t1cal

community possessing the power to determine its own embership, and may do so according t to
written law, custom, intertribal agreement, or treaty with the United States. See, Cohen’s
Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01[2][b] (2005 Edition); see also, Santa Clara Pueble v.
Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 54 (1978) (“To abrogate tribal decisions, particularly in the delicate area of .
membership, for whatever *good' reasons, is to destroy guliural identity under the guise of savmg
i) quotmg Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 402 F.Supp. 5, 18 19 O.N.M. 1975).

1 understand the difficult circurhstances facmg those in 'v1dua1 Miwok Indians living in ;
Calaveras County, California and who lack an affiliation with a federally recognized tribe.
Affiliation with a tribe lies at the core of Indian identity] This is one reason why the Department

is working to improve the process by which tribes can become federally recogmzed and have

their nauon—to-nanon relationship with the United Stateg restored.

Nevertheless, the United States cannot compel a soverelgn federaIly TECO gmzcd tribe to acccpt

individual Indians as tribal citizens to participate in a tegrganization effort against the Tribe’s ©
will, See Santa Clara Pueblo, supra.- It is possible that there are other individual Indians in the
area surrounding Sheep Ranch who are e eligible to becorhe members of the Tribe. Mr, Dixie and
Ms. Burley, along with the BLA. have' prevmusly indicated such See 515 F 3dat 1267-68
(D.C.Cir, 2008). - ,

There is a significant difference, however, between eligibility for tnbal citizenship and actual
tribal Cl'tlZCnShlp Only those individuals who are actually. admitted as citizens of the Tribe are

- entitled to participate in its government, The proper recpurse for those 1nd1v1duals eligible for ;

tribal citizenship, but who are not yet enrolled is to work through the Tribe’s internal process for
gaining cmzenshlp

Itis mdlsputable that Mr, Dixie adopted Sy1v1a Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and
Tristian Wallace as citizens of the Tribe. Moreover, it if indisputable that the BIA prevmusly

‘accepted the Tribe’s decision to enroll these md1v1duals as tribal cmzens, as evidenced by its ; :

letter of Scptembcr 24,1998." ) . . i i
. : 4 ' , < :




~ Coneclusion .

iy

Whatever good reasons the BIA may have had for requiring the Tribe to admit new citizens to
partlmpate in its government are not sufficient to overcpme the longstandlng prmc1ples of E

resetving questions of enrollment to the Tribe.

‘B. Tribal Government

As with matters of enrollment, each tribe is vested with{the authority to determine its own form
. of government. This authority is a quintessential attribyte oftribal sovereignty. Cohen’s i ;

Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01{2][4] (2005 Ed:

!
l
i
]

ition), . T

The ‘Department recommended in a letter to the Tribe, that it “operate.as a General Cou.nc ?
which would serve as its governing body. Letter from BIA Central California Supenntendent
Dale Risling to Yakima K. Dixie, Spokesperson for the{Sheep Ranch Rancheria "

General Council would then be able to proceed with the

- (September 24, 1998). In its letter to the Tribe, the Department advised the Tribe that, “[t]he | .

conduct of business, in a manner " i;

consistent with the authorizing resolution.” Id. The De| partment previously considered this form

sufficient to-fulfill the government-to-government relationship. See awatd of P.L. 93 638

Conu'act CTJ51T62801 (February 8, 2000).

’ The determination of whether to adopt a new constitutign, end whether to admit new tribal

citizens to participate in that effort, must be made by thq
sovereign authority, and not by tlie Department.

o

Tribe in the exercise of its inherent

I have reviewed the documents referenced in this letter, ps well as the numerous submissions ‘

made by Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley to my office since the issuance of the IBLA Dec1s1on in

January 2010.

I conclude that there is no need for the BIA to continue s prevmus efforts to organize the

Tribe’s government, because it is organized as a General

Council, pursuant to the resolution it ;! LA

adopted at the suggestion of the BIA. Consequently; there is no need for the BIA to continue 1ts
prevmus efforts fo ensure that the Tribe confers tribal c11nzensh1p upon other 1nd1v1dual waok i

Indians.in the surroundmg area.

Based upon the foregomg principles of tribal sovereignt;
relationship with the Tribe, I am directing that the followi

1. The BIA will rescmd its April 2007 pubhc no“uce
Tribe, aka, Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe) in its
governmental structure that is acceptable to all m|

2, The BIA will rescind its November 6, 2006 letter
stating that the BIA will initiate the reorgamzauo
waok Tribe.

,and our government—to government ‘i’
ing actions be undertaken: ri:
to, “assist the California Valley l\/hwok
efforts to orgamze a formal .

embers.”

5 10 Sylwa Burley and Yakima Dixie 1, -
h process for the California Valley '.:




3. Iam rescinding the February 11, 2005 letter from the Office of the Assistant 'Secreia:yito

Yakima Dixie stating that the BIA does not recqgnize any government of the California

Valley Miwok Tribe. : ' : !:

4, The BIA will rescind its letter of March 26, 2004 to Sylvia Burley stating that it “does not
_ yet view your tribe to be an ‘organized’ Indian Tribe,” and indicating that Ms.: Bm-ley 1s

_merely a “person of authoniy” w1th1n the Tribe. p
. x

5. Both my office and the BIA will work with the Tribe’s existing governing body ~1its - i
General Couricil, 4s established by Resolution #/GC-98-01 —to fulfill the govemment-to-
government relationship bétween the United States and the California Valley Miwok- ;

o Tribe. _ o !:
My decision a.ddfesses those issues referred to my ofﬁc‘a by the decisioﬁ of the IBIA. : ‘

Lastly, I recognize that issues related to mombersh.lp and leadership have been significant
_sources of contention within the Tribe in recent years. ] strongly encourage the Tribe’s
govetning body, the General Council, to resolve these igsues through internal processes so as to
. mmitigate the need for future involvement by the Department in these matters. To this point, I ;
understand that Resolution #GC-98-01 provides for proper notice and conduct of meetings of the

W

General Council. Ilikewise encourage the Tribe’s Ger}fal Council to act in accord with its |

'governing document when settling matters relating to leadership and membership; so as to. bnng
“this highly contentious petiod of the Tribe’s history to & close, - . . f
l

“A snmlar letter has been transmitted to Mr, Yakima Dixie, and hislegal counsel

' . : S Sinperg y,
- | : %),c/;/&
' /éﬂ/ Laryy Echo Hawk
© Assistant Secretary — - Indian Affairs

- ce Mlke Black D1rector of the Bureau of Indian Af Ealrs
" AmyDutschke, BIA Pacific Regional Director .
'Robert Rosette, Rosetts-and Associates, PC : ' '

[e]




" Sylvia Burley ' v

" Birector’s Aptll 2, 2007 decision to affirm the Central Califg

* distributs the assets of the Sheep Ranch Ranchena to Ms
" receive the assets. : .

" Director's decision constituted an unlawful reassumption ‘of the ¢

_ the BIA’s offer of assistance constitutes ‘an impermissible Intrr
" matters that are reserved exclusively to the Tribeiand, 3.} the Regit

© neyer termtnated and thus Is not a “restored” tribe. Dec:s/on, 51 [BlA at.104.

)

United States Departme;
WAsmNGToN, p_.c.

California Valley Miwok Tribe
10601 Escondldo Place
Stockton, CA 95212

Dear Ms. Burley,

This letter is to inforr you of the Department of the Inter of’s response to the decision of the fnte’
Board of Indian Appeals {IBIA) i Golifornia Valley Miwok [Tribe . Pacific Regional Director, Burea

Indian Affdirs, 51 IBIA 103 (January 28, 2010} (Decision).

The Decislorn stemmed from Sylvia .Burl'ey.’s 'appea'l of the
rnia Agency.Superintendent in his effort
e Decision; the [BIA dismissed each of.
1d, however, fefer Ms. Burley’s second c!

“assist” the Tribe in organizing a tribal government.. "n. i
Burley’s three complaints for laek of jurisdiction.” The IBIA g

to my office, because it was inthe nature oféd tnbal enre!lment dlspute Decision, 51 1BIA at 122.

to my office by the IBlA the BiA’s mvo!vement in the
membersth

Background

This: d;fﬁcult issué is rooted in.the umque h;stary ofthe Caln‘ornla Valley MzWokTrlbe. A rela‘nvely 3
number of tribal members had beén hvmg on less than ilacre. of land i m Calaveras County, Califo
known as the Sheep Rarich Rafichéria, since 1916,. In 1066 ’che Department \vas préparing to termiy

the Tribe pursuan.t to the Cahfqrma Rancheria Te‘rm,inazlhon
Indian policy known as the, ”Termination'Era “ As p’ért of {

., The Department never coripleted the process of term,lnatmg the Tnbe and the Tribe never Ios
" statusasa sovere Ign federally—recognlzed tri be. . :

* Ms, Burley’s complalnts were: 1.) The BIA Pacific Regxona! Director’s Aprll 2, 2007 deécision Viola‘red the Tilb TE I
gkona

2007 contract with the BIA under the Indian Self-Determinatior]
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE
Y Case Name: California Valley Miwok Tribe v. California Gambling Cbntrdl Commission
CaseNo.: ~ 37-2008-00075326-CU-CO-CTL
I declare: |

I am employed in the Office of the Attorney General, which is the office of a member of the
California State Bar, at which member’s direction this service is made. I am 18 years of age or
older and not a party to this matter; my business address is 1300 I Street, Suite 125, P.O. Box
944255, Sacramento, CA 94244-2550. - '

'On December 24, 2010, I served the attached DECLARATION OF SYLVIA A. CATES IN
SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT'S EX PARTE APPLICATION REQUESTING ORDER TO
CONTINUE TRIAL DATE AND TO CONTINUE HEARING ON THE PLAINTIFE'S
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT by placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed |’
envelope and causing such envelope to be personally delivered by a Golden State Courier '
service to the office of the addressee listed below:

Manuel Corrales, Jr.
11753 Avenida Sivrita
San Diego, CA 92128

Terry Singleton

Singleton & Associates

1950 Fifth Avenue, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92101

Thomas W. Wolfrum L
1333 North California Blvd., Suite 150
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California the foregoing is true
and correct and that this declaration was executed on December 24, 2010, at Sacramento, ‘

California. . :
- Linda Thorpe - o }; J/I/kab%@f//(

Declarant v Signature ¢

6

Declaration of Sylvia A. Cates In Support of Ex Parte Application to Continue Trial
Date and Reschedule Hearing on Motion for Summary Judgment (37-2008-00075326-CU-CO-CTL)
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Civil Division

THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

THE TRIBAL COUNCIL,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

YAKIMA DIXIE,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

VELMA WHITEBEAR,
213 Downing Drive
Galt, CA 95632

ANTONIA LOPEZ,
P.O. Box 1432
Jackson, CA 95642

MICHAEL MENDIBLES,
P.O. Box 266
West Point, CA. 95255

EVELYN WILSON,
4104 Blagen Blvd.
~West Point, CA 95255

ANTOINE AZEVEDO,
4001 Carriebee Ct.
North Highlands, CA 95660

Plai.n'tiffs,
V. '

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capacity as
Secretary of the United States Department of the
Interior. _

United States Department of the Interior

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C, 20240

LARRY ECHO HAWK, in his official capacity as
Assistant Secretary-Indian Affairs of the United
States Department of the Interior,

Department of the Interior

1849 C Street, N.W,

-1-

. - - 001 60 .
Case:ntgttfoc?’\?{oberts, Richard W.

Assig : o
2 - 1/2412
Assign- Datepldmn Agen

cy Review
Description’ !



Washington DC 20240

MICHAEL BLACK, in his official capacity as
Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the
United States Department of the Interior,

Bureau of Indian Affairs

MS-4606

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Plaintiffs Yakima Dixie ("Chief Dixie"), the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("Tribe"),
and Tribe members Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and
Antoiﬁc Azev‘edo,. individually and as members of the Tribal Council ("Council™), submit this
Complaint against the Defendants, Ken Salazgr, Secretary of the United States Department of
the Iht’erior ("Department"), Larry Echo Hawk, Assistant Secretary— Indian Affairs of the
Department, and Michael Black, Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the

Department, and state and allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION

l. In California V;zlley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1262 (D.C. Cir,
2008), the Court of Appeals for tﬁe District of Columbia Circuit upheld the Secretary of the
fxuterior's ("Secretary™) decision that Sylvia Burley ("Bur ey") and her two daughters
(collectwcly, the "Burlcy Faction") were not the legltlmaie government of the Tnbe The court
held that the Secretary, in 2004 and 2005, propelly re¢jected a purported tribal constitution that |
the Burley Faction had submxtted "without so much as consulting [the Tribe's] membership."
The Secretary therefore properly refused to recognize Ms, Burley as Chairperson of the Tribe,

and properly refused to recognize the Tribe as "organized" under the Indian Reorganization

iy
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Act of 1934 ("IRA"). See Letter from Dale Risling Sr., Superintendent, Bureau of Indian
Affairs Central California Agency, to Silvia Burley (Mar. 26, 2004) (the "2004 Decision") (a
true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"); Letter from Michael Olsen,
Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs, to Yakima Dixie, (Feb. 11, 2005) (the "2005
Decision) (a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B"). The Court of
Appeals thus affirmed a decision by the District Court for the District of Columbia, dismissing
Ms. Burley's challenge to the Secretary's decisions. |

2. In briefs submitted to the Court of Appeals, the Secretary took the position that,
“for an 'Indian tribe' to organize under the IRA, action by the tribe as a whole is required,
action by an unrepresentative faction is insufficient." The Secretarf argued, in support of the
2004 and 2005 Decisions, that she could not recognize Burley's purported tribal government,
or its constitution, because "the undisputed facts show that the Burley Government was
elected, and its governing documents adopted, by just three people and without the
participation of the vast majority of the potential members of the Tribe." The Secretary also
reCOgni-zed that she had not only the authority but the obli gation to Yenisure the legitimacy of
any purported tribal government that seeks to engage in [a] gdvernment-to-government
relationship with the United States."

3. The Court of Appeals agreed with the Secretary, holding that "as Congress has
made clear, tribal organization under the [IRA] must reflect majoritarian values," and that
"[Burley's] antimajoritarian gambit deserves no statrip of approval from the Secretary."

4, Following the Court of Appeals’ decision, on November 6, 2006, the Bureau of
Indian Affairs ("BIA") issued a decision describing how it would assist the Tribe in organizing

under the IRA. The Burley Faction appealed this decision to the BIA's Regional Director. On

April 2, 2007, the Regional Director affirmed the decision.

3.



5. On April 10-and 17, 2007, the BIA published a notice seeking personal
genealogies and other information from potential Tribe members, which was to be used to
identify those who were entitled to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe. More
than 500 peopie responded. The BIA has taken no action as to these submittals.

6. The Burley Faction did not participate in the process initiated by the BIA, but
instead appealed the Regional Director's April 2, 2007 decision to the Interior Board of Indian
Appeals ("Board"). California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Pacific Regional Director, Bureau of
Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (Jan. 28, 2010).

7.~ The Board held that the Secretary's previous, judicially approved decisions
regarding the status of the Burley Faction and the requirement of majority participation were
not subjeét to ﬁnhezr review. Tt therefore dismissed all but one of Burley's claims for lack of
jurisdiction, The Board referred a single, narrow issue from Burley's appeal to the Assistant.
Secretary — Indian Affaifs (the "Assistant Secretary"): the process for identifying which
members of the Tribal community were‘entitléd to participate in the initial organization of the
Tribe.

8. On December 22, 2010, the Assistant Secretary acted on Burley's appeal Letter
' f‘rorﬁ Assistant Secretary—Indian Affairs to Yakima‘ Dixie (December 22, 2010) (the
"December 22 Decision")’; (a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "C").
The Assistant Secretary did ﬂot address the narrow issue over which he had jurisdiction.
Instead,v he inexplicably repudiated each of the arguments that the Secretary had made before
 the District Court and the Court of Appeals. Without any reasoned explanation, he reversed
each and every one of the Secretary's prior decisions that those courts had uﬁh.eld. The
Assistant Secretary rescinded the 2004 and 2005 Decisions denying recognition of the Burley

Faction and its constitution. He declared that the Tribe was "organized" under a General
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Coungcil form of govcmrﬁent, pursuant to a 1998 tribal resolution that was not signed by a |
majority of the Tribe's adult members (the "1998 Resolution"). He dir.ected the BIA to carr'y
on government-to-government relations with the Burley Faction. And he ordered the BIA to
rescind its efforts to help the Tribe organize according to majoritarian principles.

9. Plaintiffs chall‘erlige the Assistant Secretary's action as arbitrary, capricious, and
not in accordance with law. The December 22 Decision exceeds the scope of the issue referred
to the Assistant Secretary on appeal, impropeﬂy revisits and overturns long-settled, judicially
approved decisions, addresses issues barred by failure to file timely appeals with the Board,
and violates the Secretary's responsibility to en’suré that the United States conducts
government-to-government relations only with valid representatives of the Tribe,

10.  The December 22 Decision direcﬂy contradicts the Secretary's prior
representations to this Court and cedes complete control of the Tribe to.the ﬁurl,ey Féction,
who have fought for more than a decade to deny the benefits of Tribe membership to anyone
but themselves. |

11.  Plaintiffs therefore file this action, asking this Court to invalidate the Assistant
" Secretary's decision and to enjoin and invalidate its implementation. |

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

12.  This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331

because the asserted claims arise under the Constitution and laws of the United States. 4

53

13.  This Court also has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S8.C. § 1361 in
that the Tribe seeks to compel officers and employees of the United States and its agencies to

perform duties owed to the Tribe.



14, This Court also has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1362
because the Tribe is an Indian tribe duly recognized by the Secretary of the Interior, and the
matter in contrbversy arises under the Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States.

15. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(¢e) because the Secretary,
the Assistant Secretary, the Director of the BIA, and the Department are located in this district.

16.  Judicial review of the agency action is authorized by the Administrative
Procedure Act ("APA"™, 5 U.S.C. §§ 702, 704 and 706. The Assistant Secretary's decision is
final agency action under the APA and 25 C.F.R. § 2.6(c).

17. The requested declaratory and.injunctive rel.ief. is authbrized by 28 U.S.C.

§§ 220 1-2202‘.

18,  Plaintiffs have exhausted their admihis_ﬁati’ye remedies and are not required to
pursue additional administrati\;e remedies before seeking and obtaining judicial relief.

19.  Anactual case and controversy hés arisen and now exists between the parties
with regard to the Assistant Secretary's violations of the. statutes and regulations cited herein.

PARTIES

20.  Plaintiff California Valléy Miwok Tribe, also known as the "S.heép Ranch
Rancheria," the "Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California," and the "Sheep
Ranch ‘B'and of Me-wuk I.ng:lians; of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria,” is a federally recognized
Indian tribe situated in Sheep Ranch, California, in Calaveras County. (The Burley Faction
purported to enact a tribal resotution in 2001, changing the name of the Tribe from the Sheep
Ranch Band of Me-wuk Indians to-the California Valley Miwok Tribe. Plaintiffs dispute that
the Burley Faction had the authority to enact sucﬁ a resolutio‘n.' But because the BIA now
refers to the Tribe as the California Valley Miwok Tribe, Plaintiffs and members of the larger

tribal community have used that name to avoid confusion. This Complaint will do the same.)
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The Tribe consists of Indian members and thebir descendants, and/or their Indian successors in
interest, for whose benefit the United States acquired and created the Sheep Ranch Rancheria.
There is an ongoing dispute regarding the true membership and 1eadefship of the Tribe.

21.  Plaintiff Yakima Dixie is the Hereditary Chief and Traditional Spokesperson,
and the historical Chairperson, of the California Valley Miwok Tribe.

22, Plaintiff Tribal Council is the duly authorized and legitimate governing body 6f
the Tribe, appointed by Chief Dixie. The Council consists of Chief Dixie and Tribe members
Velma 'White-Bear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antoine Azevedo.

23, Plaintiffs Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn
Wilson and Antoine Azevedo are members of the Tribe and of the Tribal Council. Eachisa
lineal descendant of a historical member or members of the Triﬁe.

. 24.  Defendant Ken Salazar is the Secretary of the ﬁnited States Department of the
Interior. Mr. Salazar is responsible for the sixpervision of the various federal agencies and
bureaus within the Department, including the BIA. Mr. Salazar is an officer or emploj/ee of
the United States and has a direct statutory duty to carry out the provisions of the Indian
Reorganization Act of 1934 (“IRA”) and other relevaﬁt laws, Mr, Salazar is sued in his official
capacity only. |

25.  Defendant Larry Echo Hawk is the Assistant Sec?etary — Indian Affairs of the
Department and head qf the Bureau of Indian.Affﬁirs. Mr. Echo Hawk issued the December 22
Decision that is challenged in this -acti-én. Mr. Echo Hawk is sued in his official capac-i-ty only.

26.  Michael Black is the Director éf the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the
Department. Mr. Black is responsible or the day-to-day operations éf the BIA, including its

relations with federally recognized Indian tribes. Mr. Black is sued in his official capacity

only.
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RELEVANT FACTS

T;ibal History and Indian Reorganization Act

27.  In 1916, the United States purchased approximately one to two acres of land
and created the Sheep Ranch Rancheria for the benefit of a small cluster of twelve to fourteen
Miwok Indians that were found living in or near Sheep Ranch, California. The United States
subsequently recognized the Sheep Rancﬁ Band of Me-wuk Indians as a federal Indian Tribe.

28.  In 1935, the Tribe voted to accept the IRA. The IRA allows Indian tribes to
adopt.a constitution, form a tribal government, and elect tribal officials, subject to substantive
and procedural requirements in the IRA. Tribes thus “organized.” under the [RA are eligible
for certain federal benefits and services. Although it accepted the IRA, the Tribe did not take
action fo become "organized.”

29.  Under the IRA, the Secretary has a duty to ensure that the Department
recognizes only a legitimate tribal goy'erﬁm',erit th#t reflects the participation of a majority of
the Tribe’s membership. This duty is informed’and strengthened by the United States’ trust
obligations to Indian tribes and their members.

The California Rancheria Act and Failure to Terminate the Tribe

30. In 1958, Congress ernacte.d the California Rancheria Act, which authorized the
~ Secretary to terminate the lands and trust status of enumerated Indian tribes on Califbmia
Rancherias under certain conditions. Under the Act, tribes could aécept tcrmination in
exchange for fee title to Rancheria assets and the provision of certain services by the federal
- government.

31, In 1 965, the BIA listed Mabel Hodge Dixie as the only Indian living on Sheep

Ranch Ranchéria.



32.  On'or about: 1966 the BIA began proceedmgs to “termiriate™ the Tribe pursuant

to the Cahforma Ranchen ct, and' the Umted States conveyed fee title'in the Shecp Ranch:

Ranchena to Mabe[ Hodge Dxx:e The BIA nevér completed: the requxrements for termination.

In]967,Ms Dl_xle-:‘qmtclmmedithc” Rancheria back‘ to the United. States, thereby;prpventing}
terminationiof the Tribe from becoitifiig effective;
33 Inl97l, Ms: Dixie, died, and Her son Yakima:Dixie inherited the positioitof

Hereditary Chief and Traditional Spokesperson of the. Tribe.

In:1994; G'ongresé.,,e_'nac-ted-zthe ’I‘r:be List Act, Pub; L. 103-454; 108 Stat. 4791

4792, wihich requiites the Secretary annuaily to publish allist of federally recognized Indiar

_ Burléy Seeks Control of the Tribe:

35 Int Chwaxxuewaa the only Indian living on the Sheep Ranch: Rancheria.

pites enisiied & Biirley atternpied o, gainsole

ted-the 1998 Reselution, which purported te.




so. Over the next few years, Burley tried ééveral times, unsuccessfully, to gain BIA approval
of various. Tribal constitutions that would have recognized her as the Tribe's leader and limited
Tribe membcrship‘ to Burley and a few others.

Chief Dixie's Efforts to Organize the Tribe

37.  After several years of failed efforts to resolve the leadership disputes that had
arisen with Burley, Chief Dixie bégan efforts in 2003 to organize the Tribe without Burley's
assistance and with the participation of the entire Tribal community. Since late 2003, the Tribe
has held open meetings each lﬁonth.' Attendance at the meetings ranges from approximately 30
to morc' than 100 members. Attendance records are kept, and meetings are recorded and
archived. Although Burley was specifically invited to the initial meetings and has never been
excluded from any meeting, she has never attended. |

38.  Inaddition to the general Tribal meetings, Chief Dixie convened a group of
individuals who were recognized within the Tribal community as figures _of authority, in order
to form a Tribal Council. In addition to Chief Dixie, the Council consists of Plaintiffs Velma
WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson aﬁd Antoine Azevedo. Each
of the members of the Tribal Council is a lineal descendant of a historical member or members
of the Tribe. The Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and presented the BIA with
documentation of their legitimate claims to Tribal membersh ip and authority.

39. At the September 2003 meeting, Chief Dixie and the Council presented the BIA
with'a list of Tribal community members whe should be allowed to participate in the initial
organization of the Tribe, and requested that the BIA call an election pursuant to the IRA to
select a Tribal government that could be recognized by the United States. The BIA did not act
on the Council's request but continued to meet regularly with Chief Dixie and the Council to

discuss efforts to organize the Tribe. Since its formation, the Tribal Council has met
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approximately every other month to discuss Tribal policy, enact resolutions, and conduct other
Tribe business.

40. Under the leadership of the Council, the Tribe has established many programs
aimed at benefiting the full Tribal membership, strengthening the tribal community, and
reestablishing historic ties with the larger Indian community. Extensive information about the
Tribe’s activities is available on the Tribe’s website at http:/californiavalleymiwok.com/x-
index.html. Tribal activities include:

a.  Involvementin approxim‘ately ten Indian-Child Welfare Act cases, in an
effort to have children of Tribe members who are in protectivé services placed with families ‘
that have ties to Indian traditions. Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in these cases. |

b. Issuance. of Tribal identification cards.

c. Tnvolvelﬁent in Indian health services, emergency services and food
distribution progi‘atﬁs-, including the MACT Indian health services program, that benefit
. members of the Tribe and other Indian tribes. | | |

d. Participation, with other Miwok tribes, in an intratribal Miwok
Language Restoration Group:. Plaintiff Evelyn Wilson is the senior M‘I;WO!{' member who still
spéaks‘ the Miwok langtlage.,

e. A ceremonial Indian dance group (through Tribe members Gilbert
Ramirez and his son Pété) that represents the Tribe at events throughout California.

f. Censultation with Caltrans regarding possible Indian remains found at

development sites.

g. Consultation with the U.S. Forest Service to help identify native plants

on state and federal land that have been used by Indiahs for medicinal and other purposes.
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h.  Classes in traditional crafts and skills, such as basket weaving, and
continuing efforts to revive the gathering of native plants, pine nuts, and other materials for
such crafts, as well as to protect the sites where those materials are gathered.

i. Potential involvement, in collaboration with Calaveras County and other
local and state agencies, in the Collaborative Forest Landscape Restoration Program, a
fedefally supported forest rehabilitation program.

J _ Participation in a variety ot’otl1ef economically and socially beneficial
prdgrams and activities, including but not limited to the Calaveras Healthy Impact Products
Solutions program.

Each of these activities will be harmed if the Decembgr 22 Decision is allowed to stand and the

federal government recognizes the Burley Faction as the government of the Tribe.

The BIA Repudiates the Burley Faction

41 . Burley responded to Chief Dixie's efforts tlo organize the Tribe around its
legitimate members by submitting yet another proposad constitution, in February 2004, to the
BIA—purportedly to demonstrate that the Tribe was already “organized” with Ms. Burley as
its leader.

42, In a March 26, 2004 letter to Burley, the EIA dc;:lined to approve her latest
constitution. 'l"lie BIA explained that efforts to organi.zé a Tribe must reflect the involvement
of the whole tribal community: "Where a iribe that has not previously organized seeks to do so,
BIA also has a responsibility to determine that the organizational efforts reflect the |
involvement of th‘e whole tribal community, We have not seen evidence that such general
involvement was attempted or has occurred with the purported organizationbof your tribe. ...
To our knowledge, the ouly persons of Indian descent involved in the tribe's organization
efforts, were you and your two daughters . . .. It is only after the greater tribal community is

~12-
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initially identified that governing documents should be drafted and the Tribe's base and
meml&ership criteria identified.”

43.  The BIA's letter identified several groups of Tribe members and segments of the
tribal commﬁnity who should be involved in the initial organization efforts. These groups
included Chief Dixie and his brother Melvin Dixie; other individuals who had resided at Sheep
Ranch Rancheria in the past, and their offspring; persons who had inherited an interest in the
Sheep Ranch Rancheria; Indians who had once lived adjacent to Sheep Ranch Rancheria, and
their descendants; and neighboring groups of Indians, of which the Tribe may once have been &
part.

44.  The BIA's letter also stated that "the BIA does not yet 'vicw your tribe to be an
'organized' Indian Tribe" and that, as a ;esu.lt, the BIA could not recognize Burley as the Tribe's
Chairperson.

45 On February 11, 2005, the Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs sent a letter to
Chief Dixie and Buf!ey in which he reiterated the decisions expressed in the BIA's March 26,
2004 letter.. The Assistant Secretary stated, "In that letter, the BIA made clear that the Federal
government did not recognize Ms. Burley as the tribal Chairman._ ... Until such time as the
Tribe has Qrganized, the Federal government can recognize no one, including yoursglf, as the
tribal Chairman. I encourage you... 10 contiﬁue. your efforts to organize the Tribe al.ohg the
lines outlined in the March 26, 2004 letter so that the Tribe can become organized and enjoy
the fuil benefits of Federal recognition. The first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying
putative tribal members."

46.  After the Assistant Secretary's 2005 determination, the BIA sought to work with

Chief Dixie's Tribal Council and the Tribe to complete the organization process. Chief Dixie
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and the BJA invited Burley to participate, but she again refused and instead filed suit
challenging the Assistant Secretary's decision. |
The District Court and Court of Appeals Uphold the BIA's Decision

47.  In April 2005, the Burley Faction filed suit in the federal district court for the
District of Columbia. The suit challenged the BIA's and Assistant Secretary's refusal to
approve the Burley Faction's proposed constitution and to recognize its purported Tribal
government, and sought a judgment that the Tribe was “organized.” Notably, Burley did not
contest in federal court the BIA's specific decision not to recognize her as the Tribﬁl
Chairperson. She thereby waived any challenge to that decision.

48. '4 Around the same time, the Burley Faction also purported to disenroll Chief
Dixie from the Tribe, for the purpose of denying him status to participate in the federal lawsuit.
Ironically, in 2009, the Burley Faction purported to reinstate Chief Dixie as a member of the
Tribe, in an attempt to deny him a basis to intervene in state court litigation in which Burley

.sought access to funds held in trust for the Tribe.

49.  The district c‘ourt‘dismisseid the Burley Faction’s claims in March- 2006. The
court found that the Secretary has "a responsibility to ensure that [she] deals only with a tribal
govc_r_ﬁment that actually represents the members of a tribe.” California Valley Miwok Tribe v.
United States, 424 F.Supp.2d 197 (D.D.C. Mar. 31, 2006). Likewise, the court found that the
BIA has a "duty to ensure that the interests of all lfibe members are protected during.
organization and that gov-e?n%ng documents réflect the will of a majority of the Tribe's

‘members.” The court found the BIA's decisions consistent with that duty.

50 The district court noted that the Burley Faction had submitted a constitution that

"conferred tribal m.e%nbership only upon them and their descendants . . . [but] the government .

estimates that the greater tribal community, which should be included in the organization
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process; may exceed 950 members " In lxghtf of the act 'that the Tnbe was rece

approxnmately $1 5 mllhon pet year in s,ate 'md federal tthe:- t1me, thc court ¢oncluded.

that Burley's mouvanon was: self ev1dent "As H. L --Mencken i§'said to-have sdid:. 'Wheii.

lll

sorfieone says it's:not about the' mo"ﬁ'e_y, it's: about the! money

51.  Burley challenged th_.éldzstr_m@-»;couﬁsv d;e.c1mgm;;apdiiﬁe{(3burt' of Appeals for. the.

District of Columbia Circuit affirmed. California.Vall zwolcTnbe, szq;r&,-,s;'l'ffs_ 'F.3d 1262,

: ment and constitution

According to the Court'of Appeals, the rejection of the; Burle '
:fﬁi?"f“{:lfl'ed a cornerstone of the United States? thust :o‘{Slii'_gézt'ion;to bes "to "sromote a
fribie’s political fitegrity, which include v
thwarted by rogue leaders when it ¢o

52..  The Court of Appeals fi
r’vo‘I:é”i;ﬁ"éfétenﬁihfhg;wﬁeﬁéfia-. tfiﬁéf’-héS‘:ﬁereny orgal
' Secletary has the: POWEr'tS: manage "l Ind:an affa:r .

rje':lg‘t:zngg .. : The:exereise of this- authonty is: espect
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The BIA Attempts to Assist the Tribe In Organizing

53.  On November 6, 2006, after the district court had dismissed Burley's claims, the
BIA informed the Burley Faction that it would assist the Tribe in organizing according to
majoritarian principles, consistent with the decisions upheld by the court. The Superintendent
of the BIA's Central California Agency wrote to Burley and Chief Dixie that the BIA
"remain[ed] committed to assist the [Tribe] in its efforts to reorganize a formal governmental
structure that is repfesentative of all Miwok Indians who can establish a basis for their interest
in the Tribe and is acceptable to a clear majority of those‘Indians." To help achieve that goal,
the BIA would facilitate a public meeting of existing members and Putative Members—i.e.,
those members of the tribal community with a legitimate claim to Tribal membership based on
their lineal descent from original members of the Tribe.

54.  Instead of cooperating in this effort to organize the Tribe, the Eurley Faction
appealed the Superintendent's November 6, 2006 decision to the BIA's Pacific Regiohal
Director. On April 2, 2007, the Regional Director affirmed the decision and remanded the
matter back to the Superintendent to implement the actions mentioned in the No;/ember 6,
2006 decision. The Regional Director wrote, "We believe thc‘ main purpose [of the Novembef
6, 2006 decision] was to assist the Tribe in identifying the whole community, the ‘putative’
group, who would be entitled to participate in the Tribe's efforts to organize a government that
will represent the Tribe as a whole. ... Itisour Eclief that until the Tribe has identified the
‘putative’ group, the Tribe will not have a solid foundation upon which to build a stable |
» govcmment."‘

55. | On April 10 and April 17, 2007, the BIA published public notice of an
upcoming meeting to organize the Tribe. The notice requested that Putative Members submit

documentation of their membership claim to the BIA (e.g., personal genealogies). The public
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notice defined the Putativve Members as lineal descendants of: (1) individuals listed on the 1915
Indian Census of Sheep-ranch Indians;.(2) Jeff Davis (the only Indian listed as an eligible voter
on the federal government’s 1935 voting list for the Rancheria); and (3) Mabel Hodge Dixie.
56.  According to the BIA, approximately 580 persons submitted personal
genealogies to the BIA in response to the April 2007 public notices. Plaintiffs Velma
WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyﬁ Wilson and Antoine Azevedo each
submitted genealogies and othpr documentation to the BIA in response to the public notices.
No member of the Burley Faction submitted documentation in response to the public notices.
The BIA has taken no action on the information submitted.
Burley Attempts to Relitigate Her Claims Before the Board
57.  Burley appealed the Regional Director's April 2, 2007 decision to the Interior

Board of Indian Appeals. Among other claims not relevant here, Burley argued that the BIA's
decision to involve the Tribal community in the initial organization of the Tribe was an
impermissible intrusion into Tribal gdvemment and membership matters, because the Tribe
was already "0rganizéd"——-an issue that the district court and Court of Appeals had already
decided ad”versely to Burley in her earlier federal suit,‘ |

~58.  InJanuary 2010, the Board decided Burley's appeal. The Board recognized that
the Assistant Secretary’s February 11, 2005 decision aﬁd the ensuing federal litigation had
already finally determined the folloWing issues: (1) tﬁat, the BIA did not recognize the Tribe as
being organized; (2) that the BIA did not recognize any tribal government that represents the
Tribe; (3) that the Tribe’s membership was not necessarily limited to the Burley Faction a;ad
Yakima Dixie; and (4) that the BIA had an obligation to ensure that a “greater tribal
community” was allowed to participate in organizing the Tribe. The Board recognized that, to-

the extent Burley's appeal attempted to relitigate those issues, it had no jurisdiction over her
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claims, Accordingly.

the Board dismissed all:of Burley’s claims (incliidin g those claims not
discussed hére), exce ﬁ:.-a\‘:sii}glé,';nétrw}’i‘s'su‘e';,,
59.  According to'the Board, the Burley appeal raised a.solitary issue that had not:

already been decideaffby-,ﬂie..AssiStaﬁt;- fS’écrct,ar;y;;{ thié process for deciding "wha BIA will

recoggiz’»e,-:’ih&iVi&hﬂiyi.-aﬁd-.C'dj,fé@f members of the 'greater fribal. community' that BIA

believes ﬁmStibe_-‘al‘fbwe_jcfi:f‘ft'ii;pafti(:ipj_'zji_tﬁ::ii’ii’_’thfe,ﬁ:’gjgihéral'A.'_c:Qunci'l- meeting.of the Tribe for:

organizaticnal purposes:” The. Bbar:disch.,arac'te,r:i;Zed:' this:as a "‘tr.ibzifenr‘vbl'limcnt dispute” and:

therefore referredthe issveito the Assistant Secretary for resolution.

A' :'ssmtant 8 'cretarxal rthew of both decisions i 1s timie
Gil! pufsuiant 1o the
1998 ioiis folielp the Tribe:
OIEARIZ '
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Consequences of the Secretary’s Unlawful Decision
61.  Asaresult of the Assistant Secretary’s unlawful December 22 Decision, the
Plaintiffs have suffered and will continue to suffer great injury, including bﬁt not limited to the
following:
62.  Chief Dixie and the members of the Tribal council have been denied the
opportunity to participate in the organization and govefnance of the Tribe.

a. Immediately after the Secretary issued his December 22 Decision, the
Burley Faction issued a public notice calling for a “special election” to elect tribal ofﬁceré.
The public notice stated that only Ms. Burley, her two daughters, and Chief Dixie would be
allowed to pan"icipate in the election of the Tribe’s government, The public notice relied on
the December 22 Decision as the basis for the Burley Faction’s right to call the election.

b. On January 7,2011, the Burley Faction conducted its “special election”
ambng the three members of the Burley family. Neither Chief Dixie nor any member of the
Tribal Council participated in the “special election,” | Except for Chief Dixie, the other
- individual plaintiffs were barred from participating.

c. On Jam.lary 12,2011, the BIA acknowledged receipt of the results of the
Burley Faction’s January 7 “special election” and recognized a “tribal council” consisting of
Burley as Chairperson and her daughter, Rashel Reznor, as Secretary/Treasurer. It .is telliﬂg
that the BIA's letter does not mention the number of voters participating in this "election.”.
Under the government recognized by the BIA, none of the Plaintiffs has any voice in the
organization or governance of the Tribe,

63. . Chief Dixie and the members of the Tribal Council have been and will be

denied the benefits of Tribe rﬁembership, because the December 22 Decision allows the Burley
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Faction to withhold funds, benefits and services that should be médc available to them as Tribe
members. Among other things:

a. ‘The December 22 Decision a]lqws the Burley Faction to exercise
complete control over Tribe membership and to exclude Chief Dixie and the members of the
Tribal Council from membership in the Tribe:

| b. As a result of being denied Tribe membership, the members of the Tribal -
Council are not and will not be eligible to receive federal health, education and other benefits
provided to members of recognized Indian Tribes.

64.  The December 22 Decision, if upheld, could prbvide a basis for allowing Burley
to divert funds held in trust for the Tribe by the State of California. Beginniug in 1999, Burley
represented to the California Gambling Control Commission (“Commission”) that she was the
authorized representative of the Tr-ibe' and entitled to collect funds paid by the state to tribes
that do not operate casinos or gaming devices. Burley received funds from the Commission,
which were meant for the VT ribe, between 1999 and 2005 (the “State Funds”). The State Funds
totaled approximately $1 million or more per year.

a. None of the Plaintiffs received any of the State Funds. The Plaintiffs do
not know of any members of the Tribe who received or benefited from any of the State Funds
except for Burley and her immediafe family. The Plaintiffs do not know of any pi‘ograms for
the benefit of the Tribe or its members that were created or supported with the Funds.

5. In 2005, the Commission ceased distribution of the State Funds to
Burley on the ground fhat the federal government &id' not recognize her as the appropriate
representative of the Tribe. Burley has filed litigati'o‘n. in California Superior Court, seeking to
compel the Commission to resume distribution of the State Funds to her, including

approximately $6.6 million of the State Funds that the Commission has withheld since 2005.

-20-



California Valley Miwok Tribé v. California Gambling Control Commission, No. 37-2008-
00075326 (Sup. Ct. San Diego). Burley seeks to introduce the December 22 Decision as
evidence that she is entitled to receive the State Funds.

c. If Burley receives the State Funds, Chief Dixie and the members of the
Tribal Council will be denied the benefit of the State Funds, because the State of California has
no control over fhe use of the State Funds once they are paid to a tribe.

d. [f Ms. Burley receives the State Funds, the Tribe will be denied the
Funds, because Ms. Burley is not a legitimate representative of the Tribe.

65. The. December 22 Decision will allow Burley to divert federal funds intended
for the Tribe. Beéinning in 1999, and continuing through 2007, Burley received federal grant
money intended for the Tribe, based on her representation that she was an authorized
representative of the Tribe. The g;‘ani money Was provided through a “self-deteﬁnination
contract” pursuant to Public Law 93-638 ("PL 638") to assist the Tribe in organizing under the
IRA. Burley received from $400,000 to $600,000 per year.

A a. . Burley did not use the PL 638 funds to organize the Tribe consistent
with the IRA. Instead, she sought to disenfranchise Plaintiffs and other members of the Tribal
community and secured the benefits of Tribe membership onlyA for herself and her immediate
family. |

b. The BIA has indicated its intent, based on the Secretary’s decision, to
enter into a new PL 638 contract with the Burley Faction to provide funds for organization of
the Tribe. The Tribe will be denied its rightful use of the PL 638 funds, because those funds

will be paid to Burley and her illegitimate government instead.
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Plaintiffs' Request for Reconsideration

66.  On January 6, 2011, the Plaintiffs requested that the Secretary immediately
reconsider and stay the Assistant Secretary's December 22 Decision. The Secretary did not
respond, and on January 21, 2011, Plaintiffs withdrew the request for reconsideration.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Arbitrary and Capricious Agency Action in. Violation of the APA)
67.  Plaintiffs re-allege paragraphs 1 through 66, and incorporate those paragraphs
herein as if set forth in full.
68.  The APA provides that a court must hold unlawful and set aside agency action
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that is “arbitrary, capr_icious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law.’
5 US.C. §706(2)(A).

69.  The Assistant Secretary’s December 22 Decision consﬁtutcs “final agency
action.”

70.  The December 22 Décision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it
unlawfully reopened and addressed issues not within the scope or jurisdiction of the Board
appeal from which the decision arose, including the status of the Tribe as not "organized," the-
BIA's and Department's refusal to recognize the tribal government led by Burley, and the |
BIA’s decision to involve the entire tribal commﬁnilty in the organization of the Tribe. Under
binding regulations of the Department, those issues were final, not subject to the jurisdiction of
the Board, not subject to appeal, and not referred to the Assistant Secretary by the Board.

71. ?’lwe December 22 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it fails to
provide a reasoned analysis explaining why the decision completely reverses judicially

approved, longstanding BIA and Department policy and prior BIA and Department
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determinations in this case, regarding the status of the Tribe and the Burley government and
the requirements for organization under the IRA.

72. The December 22 Decision violates A}PA section 706(2)(A) because it is
precluded By the doctrine of res judicata. The.status of the Tribe and of Burley’s purported
government are issues that were previously .litigatcd‘and finally decided by a court of
competent jurisdiction in a prior dispute between Burle¥ and the Debartrncnt. The Court of
Appeals I"'or the District of Columbia Circuit held that the Secretary properly refused to
recognize the tribe as organized under the Burley Faction. Res judicata therefore bars Burley
from attempting to relitigate those issues in another forum. The Assistant Secretary’s
December 22 Decision is precluded by the district court's and Court of Appeals’ resolution of
those issues.

73.  The December 22 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is bérre‘d
by the doctrine of judicial estoppel, because the Secretary previously argued; before the
District Court for the District of Columbia and the Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit, that the Tribe was not organized and that she could not recognize Burley's
purported government., The December 22 Decision reverses the very same actions that the
Secretary defended before the district court and the Court of Appeals.

74,  The Dccembér 22 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it fails to
address a prior appeal by Chief Dixie. In October 2003, Chief Dixie filed an appea} with the
As-si»s-téﬁt Secretary — Indian Affairs, challenging the BIA’s recognition (at that time) of Ms.
Burley as Chairperson. On February 11, 2005, the Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs
dismissed the appeal on procedural grounds. The Assistant Secretary found that the BIA’s .\
2004 Decision had rendered Chief Dixie’s appeal moot, because that decision made clear that

the BIA did not recognize Ms. Burley as Tribal Chairperson, that the Tribe was not
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“organized;” and that the United States did not fecognize any Tribal government. Because the
December 22 Decision purports to rescind the ﬁl;zﬂ 2004 Decision, the Assistant Secretary
must reinstate and decide Chief Dixie’s appeal before recognizing any Tribal government.

75.  The December 22 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it does not
fulfill the Secrefary's trust obligation to the Tribe and its members. The Secretary has a.
fiduciary duty to ensure that any tribal government he recognizes represents a majority of the
tribal community. By recognizing a purported government that represents only three members
of the Tribé, the S‘ecrctary (acting through his subordinate the Assistant Secretary) has
breached 'his duty to the. Tribe, the Tribal Council and the individual Plaintiffs.

76.  The December 22 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is
inconsistent with the IRA. The IRA imposes substantive and procedural requirements that
must be met before the Secretary may recognize a tribal governmeni, By recognizing a tribal:
government that was not clected or ratified pursuant to those requirements, the Secretary
(acting through the Assistant Secretary) has violated the IRA.

77.  The December 22 Decision'violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it
unla§vfully recognizes a tribal government based on the 1998 Resolution, which is invalid on
its face. The 1998 Resolution identifies "at least” .ﬁvé individuals who are Tribe members, and
recites that it was authorized by a majority of the Tribe's adult members. But it bears only two
signatures. Moreover, one of those signatures purports to be that of Chief Dixie, who disputes

the
1

>
AN

validity of the signature. Therefore, the 1998 Resclution cannot be the basis for a valid

government recognized by the United States.

78.  Asadirect and proximate result of the December 22 Decision, Chief Dixie, the
Tribal Council, and Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and

Antoine Azevedo have been and will continue to be denied their rightful opportunity to
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participate in the organization and governance of the Tribe and will suffer irreparable injury

and financial loss.

79.  As adirect and proximate result of the December 22 Decision, Chief Dixie,
Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antoine Azevedo
have been and will continue to be denied the benefits of Tribe mcmbérship and will suffer
irreparable injury and financial loss.

80.  Asa direct and proximate résu.lt of the December 22 Decision, the Tribe and the
members of the Tribe, including Chief Dixie, Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael
Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antoine Azevedo, have been and will continue to be denied the
use of the PL 638 funds available through the BIA, and the State Funds provided by the
Commission, and will suffer irreparable injury and financial loss.

81. . As a direct and proximate result of the December 22 Decision, the Tribé will be
denied recognition to conduct traditional Tribal activities and official acts, and to intervene in
legal and regulatory proceedings to protect its interests and those o‘f its members, and will
suffer irreparable injury and financial loss.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Agency Action Unlawfully Withheld and Unreasonably
Delayed in Violation of the APA)

82,  Plaintiffs re-allege paragraphs 1 through 66, and incorporate those paragraphs
herein as if set forth in full.

83.  Anagency's “failure to act” constitutes “agency action.” 5 U.S.C § 551(13).
The APA therefore provides that a court shall "compel agency action unlawfully withheld or

unreasonably delayed." 5 U.S.C §706(1).
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84.  The BIA's failure to adjudicate the status 6f the 580 Putative Members of the
Tribe who submitted genealogies and other documentation to the BIA in response to the April
2007 public notices constitutes "agency action unlawfully withheld or unreasonably delayed."

85.  Plaintiffs Velma WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn
Wilson and Antoine Azevedo submitted genealogies and other documentation to the BIA in
response to the April 2007 public notices.

86.  As a direct and proximate result of the BIA'S failure to act on the information
submitted by the Putative Members and to publish the names of those Putative M_embers who
meet the criteria to pafticipate- in the initial organization of the Tribe, Plaintiffs Velma
WhiteBear, Antonia Lppcz-, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antoine Azevedo have
been and will continue to be denied their rightful opportunity to participate in the organization
and governance of the Tribe and will suffer irr‘cparab]e injury and financial loss.

87. Asadirectand prox‘.i-mate‘résult of the BIA's failure to act on the information
submitted by the Putative Members and to publish the names of those Putative Members who
meet the criteria to participate-in the initial organization of the Tribe, the Tribe will be denied
the opportunity to organize itself and elect a legitimate representfative government under the
IRA and will suffer irreparable injury and financial loss.

88.  Asadirect and proximate result of the BIA's failure to act on the information
submitted by the Putative Members and to publish the names of those Putative Members who
meet the criteria to participate in the initial o-rg-anizaﬁnn of the Tribe, Plaintiffs Velma
WhiteBear, Antonia Lopeﬁ, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antoine Azevedo have

been and will continue to be denied the benefits of Tribe membership and will suffer

irreparable injury and financial loss.
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89.  Asadirect and proximate result of the BIA's failure to act on the information
submitted By the Putative Members and to pﬁblish the names of those Putative Members who
meet the criteria to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe, Plaintiffs Velma
WhiteBear, Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson, Antoine Azevedo and the
Tribe have been and will continue to be denied the use of the PL 638 funds available through
the BIA, and the State Funds provided by the Commission and will suffer irreparable injury

and financial loss.

90.  As adirect and proximate result of the BIA's failure to act on the information
submitted by the Putative Members and to publish the names of those Putative Meémbers who
meet the criteria to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe, the Tribe will be denied
recognition to conduct traditional Tribal activities and official acts, and to intervene in legal
and r_egulatqry proceedings to protect' its interests and those of its members, and will suffer

irreparable injury and financial loss.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

~ WHEREFORE, the Plainti ffs respectfully request that this court issue an order:

A. Declaring that the Assistant Secretary acted arbitrarily, capriciously and
otherwise not in accordance with law by acting to recognize the Tribe as “organized,” to
recognize the Burley Faction as the Tribe’s government, to abandon the BIA’s efforts to
involve the tribal community in organizing the Tribe, and to rescind prior final determihatiohs
regarding the Tribe; |

B. Vacating the December 22 Decision and directing the Assistant Secretary and

the BIA to resume efforts to involve the entire tribal community in organizing the Tribe;

227



C. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining the Secretary, Assistant Secretary and
BIA from taking any action to implement the December 22 Decision;

D. Directing the BIA to adjudicate the status of the Putative Members who
submitted documentation of their claims to Tribe membership, and to ‘publish the names of
those Putative Members eligible to participate in the initial organization of the Tribe;

E. Awarding the Plaintiffs attorneys fees and reasonable costs incurred in
connection with this action; and

F. Granting such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

M. ROY GOLDBERG

(D.C. Bar No. 416953) ‘
CHRISTOPHER M. LOVELAND

(D.C. Bar No. 473969)

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 1 1th Floor East
Washington, DC- 20005-3314 .

Tel: (202) 772-5313

Fax: (202) 218-0020
rgoldberg@sheppardmullin.com

Dated: January ___, 201! cloveland@sheppardmullin.com
Of Counsel:

ROBERT J..URAM (pro hac vice pending)
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
Four Embarcadero Center, 17th Floor

San Francisco, California 94111-4109

Tel:  415-434-9100

Fax: 415-434-3947
ruram@sheppardmullin.com
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EXHIBIT B



Unired States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washingtan. N.C. 20240

-
-

TR

i iatnln
47 ARl

-
IO S L 2

(S 8]

\Mr, Yakima K. Dixie

Sheep Ranch Raocherin of MiWok [udians of California
} 1178 Sheep Ranch Rd.

P.O. Box 41

Sheep Ranch, California 95250

Drear Mr. Dixie:

T ant writing in responsc 10 your appeal filed with the office of the Assistant Secroctary —
Indian Affairs on October 30, 2003. In deciding this appeal, Tam exercising authority delegated
10 me from the Assistant Secretary — ludiun Affairs pursuant to 209 DM 8.3 and 110 DM 8.2. In ’
that appeal, vou challenged the Burtau of Tndian Affairs’ (“BIA™) recognition of Sylvis Rurley ay
tribal Chairman and sought to “nullify” her admission. and the admission of her daughter and
sranddavghvers into your Tribe, Although your appeal raisss many difficult issues, [ must
dismiss it on procedural grounds. :

Your uppeal of the BIA™s recogmition of Ms. Busley us trihal Chairman has been reodered
inoot by the BIA's decision of March 26, 2004, a copy of which is enclosed, rejecting the Tribe’s
proposed constitution. In that letter, the BEA mude clear that the I'ederal government did not
recognize Ms. Burley as the gibal Chairman. Ruther, the BTA would recognize her as *ua person
of authority within California Valley Miwok Tribe.” Until such time as the Tribe bas orpanized.
the Fedaral wovernment can recognize no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairmag, [
encourage vou, cither in conjunction with Ms. Burdey, other uibal members, or potential uribal
smembers. to continue your ciforts 1o organize the Tribe along the lines outlined in the March 26.
2004, letter so that the Tribe cun become organized and cajoy the full benefits of Federal
recognition. The first step in orgunizing the Tribe is identifying putative tribal members. If you
need guidance or assistance, Ray Fry, (916) 930-3794. of the Central California Ageney of the
BIA can advise vou how ro go about doing this. .

In =ddition. vour appeal to my office was procedurally defoctive because it raised issues
that bued not been raised at lower levels of the udministrative appeal process. In May 2003, you
contacted the BIA 1o request assistance in preparing an appeal of the BIA™s recognition of Ms.
Rurtey as tribal Chairman, You specifically stated that you were not filing a formal Notice of
Appeal. In June 2003, you filed an “Appeal of inaction of official,” pussuant to 25 C.F.R. §2.8,
with the Central California Agency Superintendent challenging the BIA’s failure to respond to
your request tor assistance. In August 2003, you filed another “Appeal of inaction of official”



with the Acting Regional Director chatlenging the failure of the Superintendent to respond o
your appeal of the BIA™S inaction. Your appeal with my office, however, was not an *Appeal of
inaction of official.” Rather, your “Netice of Appeal” challenged the BIA's recognition of Ms.
Burley as tribal Chairman and sought to aullify the 1'ribe"s adoption of her and her family
members. ‘Those issues were not raised below. They are not, therefore, properly hefare me.

In addition, your appeal appears to be untimely. In 1999, you first challenged the BIA's
recognition of Ms. Burley as Chairman of the Tribe. In February 2000, the BIA informed you.
that it defers to tribal resolution of such issues. On July 18, 2001, you filed a lawsuit against Ms.
Burley in the United States District Court [ur the Fastern District of California challenging her
purported leadership of the Tribe. On January 24, 2002, the district court dismissed your lawsuit,
without prejudice and with leave to amend, because you had not exhausted your administative
remedies by appealing the BIA’s February 2000 decision. After the court’s January 24, 2002,
order, vou should have pursued your administrative remedies with the RIA. lnstead, you waitad.
ulmost a year and a half, natil June 2003, before raising your claim with the Bureau. As a result
of your delay in pursuing your administrative appeal after the court’s January 24; 2002, order,
vour appeal beforc me is time barred: :

In Jight of the BIAs letter of March 26, 2004, that the Tribe is not an organized tribe,
however, the BIA does not recognize any tribal government, and therefore, cannot defer to any
wibal dispute resohution process at this time. I understand that a Mr. Troy M. Woodward has
hield himself out as an Administrative Hearing Officer for the Tribe and purported to conduct a
hearing to resolve your complaint against Ms. Burley. Please be advised that the BIA docs not
recognize Mr. Woodward as a tribal official or bis hearing process as a legitimate tribal forum.
Should other issues arise with respect to tribal leadership or membership in the future, therefore,

your appeal would properly lic exclusively with the BIA.

Sincerely,

Michael D. Olsen
Principal Deputy
Acting Assistant Secrctary - ndian Alfairs

Enclosure

ce: Sylvia Burley
Troy M. Woodward, Esq.
Thomas W, Wollrum, Bsq.
Chadd Everone




EXHIBIT C



United States Department of the Interior -

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
‘Washington, DC 20240

DEC 22 201

Mr, Yakima Dixie
123] E. Hazelton Avenue
. Stockton, California 95205 -

Dear Mr. Dixde:

This letter is to inform you of the Department of the Interior’s rcspo.ns,e to the 'decision of the
Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe v, Pacific Reglonal

Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (January 28, 2010) (Decision), .

The Decision stemmed from Sylvia Burley’s appeal of the Bureau of Indian Affairg Pacific
Regional Director’s April 2, 2007 decision to affirm the Central California Agency
Superintendent in his efforts to “assist” the Tribe in organizing a tribal government. Inthe
Decision, the IBIA dismisscd each of Ms. Burley®s thres complaints for lack of jurisdiction.
The IBIA did, however, refer Ms. Burley’s second claim to my office, because it was in the
nature of a tribal enrollment dispute. Decision, 51 IBIA at 122, ‘ ,

This letter is intended to address the Umited issues raised by Ms. Burley’s second .complai'nt, as’
referred to my office by the IBIA: the BIA’s involvement in the Tribe’s affairs related to .
government and membership. : .

- Background , . .
This difficult issue is rooted in the unique history of the California Valley Miwok Tribé. " A
relatively small number of tribal members had been living on less than 1 acre-of land in
Calaveras County, California known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria, since 1916. In'1966, the
Department was preparing to terminate the Tribe pursuant to the Californi2 Rancheria . .
Termination Act, as part of that dark chapter of Federal Indian policy known as the “Termination_
Era.” As part of this effort, the Department had intended to distribute the assets of the Sheép .
Ranch Rancheria to Ms. Mabel Dixie, as the only eligible person to receive the assets. :

The Department never completed the process of terminating the Tﬁbe, and thé Tribe never lost
its status as a sovereign federally-recognized tribe, : ‘ .

* Ms. Burley's complaints were: L) The BIA Pacific Reglanal Director’s April 3; 2007 decision violated the Tribe’s FY
2007 contract with the BIA under the indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act, or the Reglonal
Director's decision constituted an unlawful reassumption of the contract; 2.) thee Tribe Is alreddy organized, and
the BIA’s offer of assistance constitutes an impermissible Intrusion into tribal government and membership
matters that are reserved exclusively to tha Tribe; and, 3.) the Reglonal Director erred in stating that the Tribe was
never terminated and thus Is not a “restored” tribe. Decision, 51 IBIA at 104,

. . 1



In 1998, Yakima Dixie, a tribal member acting as the leader of the Tribe, adopted Sylvia Burley,
Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace as members of the Tribe. At that time; the
Department recognized those five individuals, along with Yakima Dixie’s brother Melvin, as
members of the Tribe. Decision, 51 IBIA at 108.

On September 24, 1998, the Superintendent of the Bureau of Indian Affairs Central California
Agency advised Yakima Dixie, then serving as Tribal Chairman, that Yakima Dixie,

Melvin Dixie, Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristan Wallace were able to
participate in an effort to reorganize under the Indian Reorganization Act. California Valley
Miwok Tribe v. United States, 424 F. Supp. 2d. 197, 198 (D.D.C. 2006). In that same letter, the
Superintendent also recommended that the Tribe establish a general council form of government
for the organization process, and provided the Tribe with a draft version of a resolution to
implement such a form of government. On November 5, 1998, by Resolution # GC-98-01, the
Tribe established the General Council. Jd. .

Several months afterwards, in April 1999, Yakima Dixie resigned as Tribal Chairman. On

May 8, 1999, the Tribe held a general election, in which Yakima Dixie participated, and elected
Sylvia Burley as its new chairperson. The BIA. later recognized Sylvia Burley as Chairperson of
the California Valley Miwok Tribe. Id. ' '

Shortly thcreaﬁer, the Tribe developed a draft constitution, and submitred it to the BIA for
Secretarial review and approval in May 1999, During this effort, it is apparent that a leadership
dispute developed between Ms. Burley and Mr, Dixie.

On March 6, 2000, the Tribe ratified its Constitution and later requested that the BIA conduct a
review and hold a secretarial election pursuant to the Indian Reorganization Act. Id. at 199. In
the interim, on March 7, 2000, the Superintendent issued a letter to Sylvia Butley stating that the
BJA “believed the Tribe’s General Council to consist of the adult members of the tribe, i.e.,

Mr. Dixie, Ms. Burley, and Ms. Reznor,® and stated that the leadership dispute between

Mr, Dixie and Ms. Burley was an internal tribal matter.” Jd,

In February 2004, Ms. Burley submitted a document to the BIA purporting to serve as the
Tribe’s constitution. The BIA declined to approve the constitution because it believed that
Ms. Burley had not involved the entire tribal community in its development and adoption, Letter
from Dale Risling, Sr. to Sylvia Burley (March 26, 2004). The BIA noted that there were other
Indians in the local area who may have historical ties to the Tribe. In that same letter, the BIA
indicated that it did not view the Tribe as an “’organized” Indian Tribe,” and that it would only
recognize Ms, Burley as a “person of authority” within the Tribe, rather than the Chairperson.
Letter from Dale Risling, Sr. to Sylvia Burley (March 26, 2004). The Office of the Assistant
Secretary — Indian Affairs affirmed this position in a letter stating:

[T]he BIA made clear [in its decision of March 26, 2004] that the
Federal government did not recognize Ms, Burley as the fribal
Chairman. Rather, the BIA would récognize her has a “person of

2 The Tribe withdrew its original request for Secretarial review of its constitution in July 1999,
* pursuant to the Tribe's Resolution # GC-98-01, the General Councll shail consist of all adult members of the Tribe,
2



authority' within California Valley Miwok Tribe.’ Until such time
as the fobe has organized, the Federal government can recognize
no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman. :

Letter from Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D. Olsen to Yaki ixi

; . . Yakima Dixie
(February 11,' 2005). At t.hat point, the BIA became focused on an effort to organize the Tribe
ux_lder the Indian Reorganization Act, and to include a number of people who were not officially
tribal members in that effort.*

In 2005, the BIA suspended a contract with the Tribe, and later asserted that there was no longer
2 government-to-government relationship between the United States and the Tribe. 424 F. Supp,

2d, at 201. :

Sylvia Burley, on behalf of the Tribe, filed a complaint against the United States in the United
States District Court for the District of Columbia seeking declaratory relief affirming that it had
the authority to organize under its own procedures pursuant to 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), and that its
proffered constitution was a valid governing document, /4. The United States defended against
the claim by arguing that its interpretation of the Indian Reorganization Act was not arbitrary and
capricious, and that it had a duty to protect the interests of all tribal members during the
organization process — which included those individual Miwok Indians who were eligible for
envollment in the tribe. See Jd. at 202. The District Court ruled that the Tribe failed to state a
claim for which relief could be granted, which was affirmed by the United States Court of
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, Jd. at 202; 515 F.3d. 1262.

On November 6, 2006, the Superintendent of the BIA Central California Agency issued letters to
Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie, stating, “[i]t is evident, however, that the ongoing leadership
dispute is at an impasse and the likelihood of this impasse changing soon seems to be remote.
Therefore, we renew our offer to assist the Tribe in the organizational process.” Letter from
Troy Burdick to Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixie (November 6, 2006). The Superintendent then
stated “[tjhe Agency, therefore, will publish notice of a general council meeting of the Tribe to
be sponsored by the BIA. in the newspapers within the Miwok region. This will initiate the

reorganization process.” Id.

Sylvia Burley appealed this decision to the BIA Pacific Regional Director, who affirmed the
Superintendent’s decision on April 2, 2007.. That sdme month, the BIA Pacific Regional Office
published notice of the reorganizational meeting in a newspaper in the region. Sylvia Burley
appealed the Regional Director’s decision to the IBIA, which subsequently dismissed her claims,

while referring the second claim to my office.

Discussion

*The BIA, Yakima Dixie, and Svivia Burley all agreed that there was 8 number of additional peaple who were
potentially eligible for membership in the Tribe. See, California Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1267

- 1268 (D.C. Cir, 2008) (noting that the Tribe has admitted it has a potential membership of 250) (emphasis

added).
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I must decide whether to move forward with the BIA’s previous efforts to organize the Tribe’s
government, or 10 recognize the Tribe’s general council form of government — consisting of the
adult members of the tribe — as sufficient to fulfill our nation-to-nation relationship,

The Department of the Interior is reluctant to involve itseif in these internal tribal matters, To
the extent that Department must touch upon these fundamental internal tribal Tnatters, its actions
must be limited to upholding its trust responsibility and effectuating the nation-to-nation
relationship.

- A. Tribal Citizenship.

In this instance, the facts clearly establish that the Tribe is a federally recognized tribe which

shares a nation-to-nation relationship with the United States, Moreover, the facts also establish

that Mr. Dixi¢ adopted Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace as
members of the Sheep Ranch Rancheria in 1998, '

The California Valley Miwok Tribe, like all other federally recognized tribes, is a distinct political

community possessing the power to determine its own membership, and may do so according to

written law, custom, intertribal agreement, or treaty with the United States. See, Cohen's

Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01{2][b] (2005 Edition); see also, Santa Clara Pueblo v.

Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 54 (1978) (“To abrogate tribal decisions, particularly in the delicate area of

membership, for whatever *good' reasons, is to destroy cultural identity under the guise of saving
it”) quoting Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 402 F.Supp. 3, 18-19 (D.N.M. 1975),

I understand the difficult circumstances facing those individual Miwok Indians living in
Calaveras County, California and who lack an affiliation with a federally recognized tribe,
Affiliation with a tribe lies at the core of Indian identity. This is one reason why the Department

' is working to improve the process by which tribes can become federally recognized, and have
their nation-to-nation relationship with the United States restored.

Nevertheless, the United States cannot compel a sovereign federally recognized tribe to accept
individual Indians as tribal citizens to participate in a reorganization effort against the Tribe’s
will. See Santa Clara Pueblo, supra. It is possible that there are other individual Indians in the
area surrounding Sheep Ranch who are eligible to become members of the Tribe. Mr. Dixie and
Ms. Burley, along with the BIA, have previously indicated such. See 515 F.3d at 1267-68 -

(D.C. Cir. 2008). :

There is a significant difference, however, between eligibility for tribal citizenship and actual
tribal citizenship. Only those individuals who are actually admitted as citizens of the Tribe are
entitled to participate in its government. The proper recourse for those individuals eligible for
tribal citizenship, but who are not yet enrolled, is to work through the Tribe’s internal process for
gaining citizenship. :

It is indisputable that Mr, Dixie adopted Sylvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and
Tristian Wallace as citizens of the Tribe. Moreover, it is indisputable that the BIA previously
accepted the Tribe’s decision to enroll these individuals as tribal citizens, as evidenced by its
letter of September 24, 1998, -

4



Whatever good reasons the BIA may have had for requiring the Tribe to admit new citizens to
. participate in its government are not sufficient to overcome the longstanding principles of
reserving questions of enrollment to the Tribe. :

B. Tribal Government

As with matters of enrollment, each tribe is vested with the authority to determine its own form
of govemment. This authority is a quintessential attribue of tribal sovereignty, Cohen’s
Handbook of Federal Indian Law, § 4.01{2][a] (2005 Edition).

The Department recommended in a letter to the Tribe, that it “operate as a General Council,”
which would serve as its governing body. Letter from BIA Central California Superintendent
Dale Risling to Yakima K, Dixie, Spokesperson for the Sheep Ranch Rancheria

(September 24, 1998). In its Jetter to the Tribe, the Department advised the Tribe that, “[t]he
General Council would then be able to proceed with the conduct of business, in a maenncr
consistent with the suthorizing resclution.” i The Department previously considered this form
sufficient to fulfill the government-to-gavemmegt relationship, See award of P.L. 93-638

Contract CTI51T62801 (February 8, 2000).

The determination of whether to adopt & new constitution, and whether to admit new tribval
citizens to partieipale in that effort, must be made by the 'I'ribe in the exercise of its inherent
sovereign authority, and not by the Department,

Conclusion

1 have reviewed the documents referenced in this letter, as well as the nymerous submissions
made by Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley to my office since the issuanwe of the IBIA Degision in
- January 2010, : S

I conclude that there is no need tor the BIA to continue its previous efforts to organize the
Tribe’s government, becausc it is organized us u General Coureil, pursuant to the resolution it
adopted at the suggestion of the BIA., Consequently, there i3 no need for the BIA to continuc its
previous efforts to casurc that the Tribe confers tribal citizenship upon other individual Miwok
Idians in the surrounding area.

Based upon the foregoing principles of tribal sovereignty, and our govemment~to-government
relationship with the Tribe, I am directing that the following actions be undertaken:

1. The BIA will rescind its April 2007 public notice to, “assist the California Valley Miwok
Iribe, aka, Sheep Ranch Rancheria (Tribe) in its efforts to organize a formal ‘
governmental structure thal is acceptable 1o all members.”

2. The BIA will rescind ils November 6, 2006 letters to Sylvia Burley and Yakima Dixje
stating that the BIA will initiate the reorganization process for the California Valley
Miwok Tribe.



3. lamrescinding the February 11, 2005 letter from the Office of the Assistant Secretary to
Yekima Dixie stating that the BIA does not recognize any government of the California
Valley Miwok Tribe. , ' .

4. The BIA will rescind its letter of March 26, 2004 to Sylvia Burley stating that it “does not
yet view your tribe to be an *organized’ Indian Tribe,” and indicating that Ms, Burley is
merely a “person of authority” within the Trike: :

5. My office and the BIA will work with the Tribe’s existing governing body ~ its
General Council, as established by Resolution # GC-98-01 — to fulfill the government-
to-government relationship between the United States and the California Valley
Miwok Tribe,

My decision addresses those issues referred to my office by the decision of the IBIA.

Lastly, I recognize that issues related to membership and leadership have been significant
“sources of contention within the Tribe in recent years, I strongly encourage the Tribe’s
governing body, the General Council, to resolve these issues through internal processes so as to
mitigate the need for future involvement by the Department in these matters. To this point, I
understand that Resolution #GC-98-01 provides for proper notice and conduct of meetings of the
General Council, I likewise encourage the Tribe’s General Council to act in accord with its
goveming document when settling matters relating to leadership and membership, so as to bring
this highly contentious period of the Tribe’s history to a close. | .

A similar letter has been transmitted to Ms. Sylvia Burley, and her legal counsel.
Sincerely,

(e

7 Larry Echo Hawk
Assistant Secretary ~ Indian Affairs

cer Mike Black, Dirgctor of the Bureau of Indian Affairs
.Amy Dutschke, BIA Pacific Regional Director
Elizabeth Walker, Walker Law LLC
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
Washington, DC 20240

APR 01 201

‘Mr. Yakima Dixie
1231 E. Hazelton Avenue
Stockton, California 95205

Dear Mr. Dixie:

On December 22, 2010, my office issued a letter setting out the Department of the Interior's
decision on a question respecting the composition of the California Valley Miwok Tribe.

The question had been referred to my office by the Interior Board of Indian Appeals. On

January 24, 2011, you filed suit in Federal district court seeking to have the Department's decision"
vacated.

Subsequent actions by the parties involved in this dispute have led me to reconsider the matters
addressed in the December 22, 2010, decision letter. By means of today's letter, the
December 22 decision is set aside.

I believe that the longstanding problems within the Tribe need prompt resolution, and I remain
committed to the timely issuance of my reconsidered decision. [ am mindful, however, that
additional briefing may inform my analysis of the problems presented in this dispute. To that
end, I will issue a briefing schedule in the coming ‘week, requesting submissions from you and
from Ms. Silvia Burley on specific questions of fact and law relevant to the referred question.

Sincerely,
7

/S
. /’/

/ P
Larry E€ho I—Iawk’?
Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs




cC:

Ms. Silvia Burley
10601 Escondido Place
Stockton, California 95212

Robert A. Rosette, Esq.

565 West Chandler Boulevard, Suite 212

Chandler, Arizona 85225

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W., 11" Floor East
Washington, D.C. 20005-3314

Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LLC

429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney

Trial Attorney

United States Department of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources Division
P.O. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

Mike Black, Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs
MS-4513-MIB ‘

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Dutschke, Director

Pacific Regional Office, Bureau of Indian Affairs
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-820

Sacramento, CA 95825

Troy Burdick, Superintendent

Central California Agency, Bureau of Indian Affairs
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500

Sacramento, CA 95814
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

AUG 3 1 2011
Ms. Silvia Burley
10601 N. Escondido Place
Stockton, California 95212

Mr. Yakima Dixie
1231 E. Hazelton Avenue
Stockton, California 95295

Dear Ms. Burley and Mr. Dixie:
Introduction and Decision

On December 22, 2010, I sent you a letter setting out my decision in response 10 a question
referred t6 me by the Interior Board of Indian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe
v. Pacific Regional Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs. 51 IBIA 103 (January 28, 2010) (IBIA
decision). I determined that there was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts to
organize the Tribe's government, because it is organized as a General Council, pursuant to the
[1998 General Council Resolution] it adopted at the suggestion of the BIA.® 1 concluded further
that there was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts to ensure that the Tribe
confers tribal citizenship upon other individual Miwok Indians in the surrounding area.”

I issued my December decision without providing the parties a formal opportunity to brief me on
the facts and issues as they saw them. As a result of subsequent actions by both parties,

1 determined to withdraw the December decision, and, on April 8, 2011, I requested briefing
from the parties. Counsel for the parties provided detailed responses with numerous exhibits.

1 appreciate the time and effort that went into providing these responses. 1 have considered them
carcfully. '

Based on the litigation records in the prior Federal court actigns in both California and
Washington. D.C.. the proceedings before the Department’s Interior Board of Indian Appeals.
and the material submitied in response to my April 8 letter, I now find the following:

(1) The California Valley Miwok Tribe (CVMT) is a federally recognized tribe. and has
been continuously recognized by the United States since at least 1916:

(2) At the present date, the citizenship of the CVMT consists solely of Yakima Dixie.
Silvia Burley. Rashel Reznor. Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace;



(3) The CVMT today operates under a General Council form of government, pursuant to
Resolution #CG-98-01, which the CYMT passed in 1998, facilitated by representatives
of the Bureau of Indian Affairs (Burcau or BIA)(1998 General Council Resolution);

(4) Pursuant to the 1998 General Council Resolution, the CVMT’s General Council is
vested with the governmental authority of the Tribe, and may conduct the {ull range of
government-to-government relations with the United States;

(57 Although this current General Council form of government does not render CVMT an
“organized” tribe under the Indian Reorganization Act (IRA) (see e.g., 25 U.S.C. 476(a) and
(d)), as a federally recognized tribe it is not required “to organize™ in accord with the
procedures of the IRA (25 U.S.C. § 476(h));

- (6) Under the IRA, as amended, it is impermissible for the Federal government to treat
tribes not “organized” under the IRA differently from those “organized” under the IRA
(25 U.S.C. §§ 476(£)-(h)): and

(7) As discussed in more detail below, with respect to finding (6), on this particular legal
point, I specifically diverge with a key underlying rationale of past decisions by
Department of the Interior (Department) officials dealing with CVMT mam.rs apparently
beginning around 2004, and decide 10 pursue a different policy direction.' Under the
circumstances of this case, it is inappropriate 1o invoke the Secretary”s broad authority to
manage “all Indian affairs and [] all matters arising out of Indian relations,” 25 U.S.C.

§ 2, or any other broad-based authority, to justify interfering with the CVMT’s internal
governance. Such interference would run counter to the bedrock Federal Indian law
principles of tribal sovereignty and tribal self~government. according to which the tribe,
as a distinct political entity, may “manag|e] its own alfairs and govern{] itself.” Cherokee
Nation v. Georgia, 30 U.S. 1, 16 (1832); and would conflict with this Administration’s
clear commitment {o protect and honor tribal sovereignty.

Obviously, the December 2010 decision, and today's reaffirmation of that decision, mark a 180-
degree change of course from positions defended by this Department in administrative and
judicial prouedmas over the past seven years. This change is driven by a straight{orward
correction in the Départment's understanding of the California Valley Miwok Tribe's citizenship
and a different policy perspective on the Department’s legal obligations in light of those facts.

As discussed below, the BIA clearly undeérstood in 1998 that the acknowledged CVMT citizens
had the right to exercise the Tribe’s inherent sovereign power in a manner they chose. Itis
unfortunate that soon atter the 1998 General Council Resolution was enacted, an intra-tribal
leadership dispute erupted. and both sides of the dispute found. at vdrious points in time in the
intervening years, that it served their respective interests 1o raise the theory that the BIA had a
duty 10 protect the rights of approximately 250 "potential citizens” of the Tribe. A focus on that
theory has shaped the BIA’s and the Department’s position on the citizenship question ever

"1 recognize that the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals” 2008 opinion upholding prior Depariment efforts to organize
the CVMT pursuant to the IRA afforded broad deference 10 the Department’s prior decisions and interpretations of
the law. Ual Valley Mavok Tribe v. United Stares, 515 F.3d 1262, 1264-68 (D.C. Cir. 2008).

S ,



since. By contrast, today's decision clears away the misconceptions that these individuals have
inchoate citizenship rights that the Secretary has a duty to protect. They do not. The Tribe is not
comprised of both citizens and potential citizens. Rather, the five acknowledged citizens are the
only citizens of the Tribe, and the General Council of the Tribe has the exclusive authority to
determine the citizenship criteria for the Tribe. Samra Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 57
{1978). 1believe this change in the Department’s position is the most suitable means of
resolving this decade-long dispute and 1s in accord with principles of administrative law. Natr '/
Cable & Telecomms. Ass'n v. Brand X Irernet Servs., 545 U.S. 967 (2005).

Background
This decision is necessitated by a long and complex tribal leadership dispute that resulted in
extensive administrative and judicial litigation. Much of the factual background is set out in the

prior decisions, so il is not necessary to repeat or even summarize all of it here.

The history of this Tribe, and the record of this case to date, demonstrates the following:

The CVMT is a federally recognized tribe, 74 Fed. Reg. 40.218, 40,219 (Aug. 11, 2009);

o In 1916, the United States purchased approximately 0.92 acres in Calaveras County,
California, for the benefit of 12 named Indians living on the Sheepranch Rancheria (now
Sheep Ranch)(Ranc wm) (51 IBIA at 106);.

s The Indian Agent, who in 1913 recommended the purchase of the 0. 92 ac res, described
the group of 12 named individuals as “the remnant of once quite a large band of Indians
in former years living in and near the 0ld decaying mining town known and designated
on the map as ‘Sheepranch.”™ /d.; ‘

o The record shows only one adult Indian lived on the Rancheria in 19.:‘: a Jeft Davis, who
voted “in favor of the IRA™ Id.;

e In 1966, the record shows only one adult Indian, Mabel Hodm, Dixie, Yakima Dixie’s
mother, lived on the Rancheria, when the BIA crafied a plan for distribution of tribal
assets pursuant 1o the California Rancheria Act of 1958, Pub. .. No. 85-671, 72 Stat. 619,
as amended by Act of Aug. 11, 1964, Pub. 1. No. 88-419, 78 Stat. 390:

s Mabel Hodge Dixie was 1o be the sole distributee of tribal assets under the 1966
Rancheria distribution plan; '

s  While the Bureau initiated the process to terminate the Tribe, it never declared the Tribe
terminated and has never treated the Tribe as if it had been terminated:

+ [n 1994, Yakima Dixie wrote the BIA asking for assistance with home repairs and
describing himself as “the only descendant and recognized . . . member of the Tribe.”

(51 IBIA at 107):

e At some point during the 1990s, Silvia Bur]c\ contacted BIA for information related to
her Indian heritage. which BIA provided. and by 1998—at BIA s suggestion— Burley -
had contacted Yakima[]” Dixie (as the IBIA has noted. “it appears that Burley may trace
her ancestry to a *Jeff Davis™ who was listed on the 1913 census. .. .7) 51 1BIA at 107,
mcluding footnote 7:

s On August 5. 1998. Mr. Dixie “signed a statement accepting Burley as an ¢nrolled

member of the Tribe. and also enrolling Burley's two daughters and her granddaughter.”

Id.; - '
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The Tribe was not organized pursuant to the IRA prior to 1998 and did not have organic
documents setting out its form of government or criteria for tribal citizenship;

In September of 1998, BIA staff met with Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley “to discuss
organizing the Tribe,” and on September 24, 199§ sent follow-up correspondence
recommending that, “given the small size of the Tribe, we recommend that the Tribe
operate as a General Council,” which could elect or appoint a chairperson and conduct
business. /d. at 108; :

On November 3. 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley signed a resolution establishing a
General Council, which consisted of all adult citizens of the Tribe, to serve as the
governing body of the Tribe. /d. at 109;

Less than five months later, leadership disputes arose between Mr. Dixie and Ms.
Burley—and those conflicts have continued to the present day;’

Initially the BIA recognized Mr. Dixie as Chairman, but later recognized Ms. Burley as
Chairperson based primarily upon the April 1999 General Council action appointing
Ms. Burley as Chairperson - an action concurred in by Mr. Dixie. /d.;

Mr. Dixie later challenged Ms. Burley’s 1999 appointment;

In 2002, Ms. Burley filed suit in the name of the Tribe alleging that the Department had
breached its trust responsibility to the Tribe by distributing the assets of the Rancheria to
a single individual, Mabel Dixie, when the Tribe had a potential citizenship of “nearly
250 people].]” See Complaint for Injunctive and Declaratory Relief at 1, Cal. Valley
Miwok Tribe v. United States, No. 02-0912 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 29, 2002);

In March, 2004, the BIA Superintendent rejected a proposed constitution from Ms.
Burley because she had not involved the “whole tribal community” in the governmental
organization process;

On February 11, 2003, the Acting Assistant Secretary ~ Indian Affaifs issued a decision
on Mr. Dixie’s 1999 appeal, ruling that the appeal of the Bureau’s 1999 decision 10
recognize Ms. Burley as Chairperson was moot and that the BIA would recognize Ms.
Burley onlyas a person of authority within the Tribe;

Ms. Burley sued in D.C. District Court challenging the February 2005 decision;

After the District Court dismissed her challenge, Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United
States, 424 F.Supp. 2d 197 (D.D.C. 2006), the D. C. Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed,
Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1262 (D.C. Cir. 2008);

In January 2010, the IBIA rejected Ms. Burley’s appeal objecting to. among other
matiers, the Superintendent’s decision to continue to assist the Tribe in organizing its
government according to the IRA because it viewed the matter as “effectively and
functionally a tribal enrollment dispute.” and then referred the matter 1o me on
jurisdictional grounds.

In response to the Board's referral, 1 issued my December 22, 2010 decision letter. | intended
that decision to resolve the citizenship question referred to me by the IBIA by finding that the
current Tribe's citizenship consisted of the five acknowledged citizens noted above and
recognizing the Tribe's General Council as a tribal government with which the United States may

time and resources focused on these disputes reflects poorly on all the parties. and they must be mindful that
continuing this imprudent dispute risks potential adverse consequences well beyvond the Tribe and jis citizens.

4



conduct government-to-government relations. Almost immediately, Mr. Dixie filed suit in the
D.C. District Court challenging that decision. Recognizing the complex and fundamental nature
of the underlying issues, and because I desired the benefit of submissions from the interested
parties, [ set aside that decision and requested formal briefing,

The submissions by the parties in response to my request were thorough. 1 have carefully
reviewed the submissions and find they were most helpful in enhancing my understanding of the
parties” positions.

Analysis

1t is clear to me that the heart of this matter is a misapprehension about the nature and extent of
the Secretary’s role. if any, in determining tribal citizenship of a very small, uniquely situated
tribe. Related 10 this issue is the Tribe’s current reluctance to “organize” itself under the IRA,
choosing instead to avail itself of the provisionsin 25 U.S.C. § 476(h). first enacted in 2004,
which recognizes the inherent sovereign powers of tribes “to adopt governing documents under
procedures other than those specified . . . [in the IRA.]”

Applicability of General Legal Authorities of the Secretary of the Interior in Indian Afjairs

The D.C. Circuit viewed § 476(h) as ambiguous, and then granted Chevron deference 10 the
then-Secretary’s interpretation of that provision. 513 F.3d at 1266-68. The D.C Circuit put great
weight on the Secretary’s broad authority over Indian affairs under 25 U.S.C. § 2, writing that
*|wle have previously held that this extensive grant of authority gives the Secretary broad power
to carry out the federal government’s unique responsibilities with respect to. Indians.” Id. at
1267, citarions omitted. In addition to § 2, 25 1U.8.C. §§ 9, and 13, and 43 U.S.C. § 1457, are
often cited as the main statutory bases for the Department’s general authority in Indian affairs.
‘Cal. Valiey Miwok Tribe v. United Stares, 424 F Supp. 2d 197, 201 (D.D.C. 2006); see also
COMEN'S HANDBOOK OF FEDERAL INDIAN LAW § 5.03[2] at 405 (2003 ed.) [hereinafter
COIEN]. The D.C. Cireuitdlso cited two cases involving separate bands of the Seminole
Nation for the general propositions that the United States has an “obligation™ “to promiote a
tribe”s political integrity” as well as “the responsibility 1o ensure that [a tribe’s] representatives,
with whom [it] must conduct government-to-government relations, are valid representatives of
the [tribe] as a whole. " 513 F.3d at 1267(emphasis added by the Court), citing, Seminole Nation
v. United States, 313 U.S. 286, 296 (1942). and Seminole Nation of Oklahoma v. Norion, 223
F.Supp. 2d 122. 140 (D.D.C. 2002).

In my view, prior Department officials misapprehended their responsibility when they: (1) took
their Tocus off the fact that the CVMT was comprised a five individuals, and (2) mistakenly
viewed the Federal government as having particular duties relating to individuals who were not
citizens of the tribe. [ decline o invoke the broad legal authorities cited above 1o further intrude
into internal tribal citizenship and governance issues in the instant case. In making this decision,
[ also am mindful of the Supreme Court’s recent guidance concerning: (1) the importance of
identifving “specific rights creating or duty-imposing statutory or regulatory prescriptions™
hefore concluding the United States is obligated to act in a particular manner in Indian affairs,

in



and (2) the central role Federal policy plays in administering Indian affairs. Unifed States v.
Jicarilla Apache Nation, 131 S. Ct. 2313, 2323-24, 2326-27 (June 13, 2011).

Application of Specific Legal Authorities

In my view, prior Department officials (from 2003 to the present) fundamentally misundersiood
the role of the Federal government in addressing the CVMT citizenship and governance issues:
(1) they misunderstood and ignored the legal authority of CYMT to govern itself through its
General Council structure without being compelled to “organize™ under the IRA; and (2) they
confused the Federal government’s obhgataoms to possible tribal citizens with those owed 0
acma[ tribal citizens.

The February 11, 2005, decision of Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D. Olsen
stated that, until the Tribe organized itself, the Department could not recognize anyone as the
Tribe’s Chajrperson and that the “first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying the putative
tribal members.” (2005 Decision at 1-2, discussed in 51 IBIA at 112). The D.C. Circuit, after
citing the Secretary’s broad authority under 25 U.S.C. § 2, endorsed this approach as a
reasonable interpretation of 25 U.S.C. § 476(h) because “[t]he exercise of this authority is
especially vital when, as is the case here, the government is determining whether a tribe is
‘organized, and the receipt of significant federal benefits turns on the decision.” 515 F.3d at
1267. As 1 have stated above, I reject as contrary to § 476(h) the notions that a tribe can be
compelled to “organize” under the IRA and that a tribe not so organized can have “significant
federal benefits™ withheld from it. Either would be a clear violation of 25 U.S.C. § 476( ).

The CVMT currently consists of the five citizens identified dbow,- Under the current facts, the
L )epanmmi does not have a legitimate role in attempting to force the Tribe to expand its
citizenship.” Department officials previously referred to thc importance of participation of a
greater tribal community in determining citizenship criteria.” (Superintendent’s 2004 Decision at
3. discussed in 5T IBIA at 111-112). The D.C. Circuit, referring io the Tribe’s governance
structure that arguably would maintain a limited citizenship, stated “[t]his antimajoritarian
gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the Secretary.” 315 F.3d at 1267. However, [ know
of no specific statutory or regulatory authoriry that warrants such intrusion into a federally
recognized tribe’s internal affairs. (As 10 the more general sources of authority cited in support
of Federal oversight of wribal matiers, I have explained my views on the proper scope of those
authorities abave). “Courts have consistently recognized that one of an Indian wribe’s most basic
powers is the authority (o determine questions of its own membership.” Santa Clara Pueblo v.
Matrtinez, 436 1U.S. 49,37, 72 n.32 (1978); Unired States v. Wheeler, 435 U.S., 313, 322 n.18
(1978); COHEN § 3.03{3] at 176 citations omilted. *{1]f the issue for which the determination
is important involves internal affairs of the Indian natlon it is more consistent with prmuplm of
tribal sovereignty to defer to that nation’s definition.” Jd. at 180. As discussed in the previous
paragraph, | also believe that, based on an incorrect interpretation of § 476(h), the previous
Administration’s views on the IRA’s application to this case were erroncous and led to an
improper focus on expanding the size of the Tribe and altering the form of its government.

> While | believe that it is equitabh appropriate for the CVMT General Council to reach out to potential citizens of
the Tribe. 1 do not believe it is proper. s a metter of {mw, for the Federal government to attempt to impose such a
requirement on 4 federally recognized tribe.



Mr. Dixie invokes the Alan-Wilson IBIA cases to support the theory that the Secretary has a duty
to ensure that the potential citizens are involved in the organization of an unorganized, but
federally recognized tribe.* 30 IBIA 241. But, in fact, Alan-Wilson works directly against Mr.
Dixie's position, and this distinction provides additional support for my decision. Unlike CVMT,
the Cloverdale Rancheria was a federally recognized tribe terminated under the California
Rancheria Act. It was later restored pursuant to the 7illie Hardwick litigation and settlement,
which required the Rancheria to organize its tribal government under the IRA.

30 IBIA 241, 248.

My review of the history of the CVMT compels the conclusion set out in the December decision
and reaffirmed here: the CVMT has been continuously recognized, and its political relationship
with the Federal government has not been terminated. The five acknowledged citizens are the
only current citizens of the Tribe, and the Tribe's General Council is authorized to exercise the
Tribe's governmental authority. In this case, again. the factual record is clear: there are only five
citizens of CVMT. The Federal government is under no duty or obligation to “potential citizens™
of the CVMT. Those potential citizens, if they so desire. should take up their cause with the
CVMT General Council directly.

Given both parties” acknowledgment of the existence of other individuals who could potentially
become tribal citizens, the Department’s prior positions are understandable. The Department
endeavored to engage both parties in a resolution of the wibal citizenship issues, including offers
of assistance from the Department’s Office of Collaborative Action and Dispute Resolution
(CADR) ~ to no avail. By the time this matter was referred to me by the IBIA in January 2010,
serious doubts existed about the likelihood of the partics ever being able to work together to
resolve the issues involving the citizenship and governance of the Tribe. -

Absent an express commitment from the parties to formally define tribal citizenship criteria, any
further effort by the Department to do so would result in an unwarranted intrusion into the
internal affairs of the Tribe. Moreover, given the unfortunate history of this case, most likely.
such efforts would not succeed in accomplishing this objective. While there may be rare
circumstances in which such an intrusion would be warranted in order for the Secretary to
discharge specific responsibilities, no such-specific law or circumstances exist here.

Accordingly, unless asked by the CVMT General Council, the Department will make no further

eflorts 1o assist the Tribe to organize and define its citizenship. | accept the Resolution #GC-98-
01 as the interim governing document of the Tribe, and as the basis for resuming government-to-
government relations between the United States and the Tribe.

While I appreciate that the General Council Resolution may prove lacking as to certain aspects
of tribal governance, I also recognize that this tribe is very small and uniquely situated. Many
tribes have been able to govern effectively with limited or no written governing documents.

# Mr. Dixie also invokes the case of Seminale Nation of Oklahoma v. Norton, 223 F Supp.2d 122 {D.D.C.2002) in
support of his position. Seminole Nation involved a dispute where a particular faction of the Tribe asseried rights to
tribal citizenghip under an 1866 treaty. /el at 138. There is no overriding treaty or congressional enactment
governing tribal citizenship ar issue in this dispue.



Conclusion
Based upon the foregoing analysis, I re-affirm the following:

e  (CVMT is a federally recognized tribe whose entire citizenship, as of this date, consists of
the five acknowledged citizens;

o The 1998 Resolution established a General Council form of government, comprised of all
the aduli citizens of the Tribe, with whom the Department may conduct government-to-
government relations; :

e The Department shall respect the validly enacted resolutions of the General Council; and

¢ Only upon a request from the General Council will the Department assist the Tribe in
refining or expanding its citizenship criteria, or developing and adopting other governing
documents. :

In my December 2010 decision letter I rescinded several earlier decisions. 1 am persuaded that
such atiempts to rewrite history are fraught with the risk of unintended consequences. Past
actions, undertaken in good faith and in reliance on the authority of prior Agency decisions,
should not be called into question by today’s determination that those prior Agency decisions
were erroneous. Thus, today’s decision shall apply prospectively.

This decision is final for the Department and effective immediately, but implementation shall be
stayed pending resolution of the litigation in the District Court for the District of Columbia,
California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Salazar, C.A. No. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR (filed 03/16/11).

‘Finally, I strongly encourage the parties to work within the Tribe’s existing govcmmcm structure
to resolve this longstanding dispute and bring this contentious period in the Tribe’s history to a

close.

Sincerely,

arry Echo Hawk
Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs

ce: Robert A. Rosette, Esq.
365 West Chandler Boulevard, Suite 212
Chandler. Arizona 83225

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
13001 Street, N.W.. 11" Floor Last
Washington, D.C. 20005-3314



Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LLC

429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney
Trial Attorney
United States Department of Justice
Environment and Natural Resources Division
P.O. Box 663

Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

Mike Black. Director, Bureau of Indian Affairs
MS-4513-MIB

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Dutschke, Director

Pacific Regional Office, Bureau of Indian Affairs
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-820 :
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Troy Burdick, Superintendent »
Central California Agency, Bureau of Indian Atfairs
630 Capitol Mall. Suite 8-500

Sacramento, California 93814

Karen Koch, Attorney-Advisor _
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